

UNIVERSITI PUTRA MALAYSIA

MODERATING EFFECT OF GREEN TECHNOLOGY ADOPTION ON STAKEHOLDER INFLUENCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY PRACTICES IN SMALL AND MEDIUM TEXTILE ENTERPRISES IN BANGLADESH

MOHAMMAD IMTIAZ HOSSAIN



MODERATING EFFECT OF GREEN TECHNOLOGY ADOPTION ON STAKEHOLDER INFLUENCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY PRACTICES IN SMALL AND MEDIUM TEXTILE ENTERPRISES IN BANGLADESH

By

MOHAMMAD IMTIAZ HOSSAIN

Thesis Submitted to the School of Graduate Studies, Universiti Putra Malaysia, in Fulfilment of the Requirements for the Degree of Master of Science

COPYRIGHT

All material contained within the thesis, including without limitation text, logos, icons, photographs, and all other artwork, is copyright material of Universiti Putra Malaysia unless otherwise stated. Use may be made of any material contained within the thesis for non-commercial purposes from the copyright holder. Commercial use of material may only be made with the express, prior, written permission of Universiti Putra Malaysia.

Copyright © Universiti Putra Malaysia



Abstract of thesis presented to the Senate of Universiti Putra Malaysia in fulfilment of the requirement for the degree of Master of Science

MODERATING EFFECT OF GREEN TECHNOLOGY ADOPTION ON STAKEHOLDER INFLUENCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY PRACTICES IN SMALL AND MEDIUM TEXTILE ENTERPRISES IN BANGLADESH

By

MOHAMMAD IMTIAZ HOSSAIN

January 2021

Chairman : Associate Professor Ong Tze San, PhD Faculty : School of Business and Economics

Businesses are increasingly becoming conscious of the environmental aspects of their operations due to increasing consumers awareness with regards to environmental impact of their consumption choices. The willingness to reduce their ecological footprint has created new market opportunities as well as stakeholders' pressure. Consequently, green initiatives are evolving into a crucial part of strategic planning in organizations, including small and medium enterprises (SMEs). Although SMEs differ from large companies not only in terms of their size but also other characteristics, their combined impact on environment is significantly higher than big companies. Green technology adoption (GTA) with the coordinated effort of stakeholders can minimize this negative impact. Thus, the objective of this research is to determine the relationship between stakeholder influence (SI) and environmental sustainability practices (ESP), as well as examining the moderating effect of the perception of green technology adoption (GTA) in Bangladesh Textile SMEs in Dhaka, Bangladesh. The current research follows a post positivist, quantitative, deductive, confirmatory, and cross-sectional approach for the study. A structured questionnaire is used in this research to obtain primary data from 140 textile SMEs. The owners and managers are targeted as they have the supreme power and information about installing any strategic change. SPSS23 and Smart-PLS 3.2.9 are used for data analysis. Analysis of the findings showed that buyers' pressure (BP), community engagement (CE), employees' involvement (EI), government regulation (GR), management support (MS) have positive relationship with ESP except suppliers' pressure (SP). The perception on GTA only moderate suppliers' pressure (SP). The weak integration of stakeholders with the Bangladeshi textile SMEs and low level of technological awareness and adoption, support these findings. This study serves as a pioneer effort to investigate the effect of SI on ESP with the moderation of perception on GTA in Bangladesh textile SMEs. The findings of this research provide new directions for future research and several crucial implications to the other manufacturing SMEs and policymakers.

Abstrak tesis yang dikemukakan kepada Senat Universiti Putra Malaysia sebagai memenuhi keperluan untuk ijazah Master Sains

KESAN SEDERHANA ADAPTASI TEKNOLOGI HIJAU KE ATAS PENGARUH PIHAK BERKEPENTINGAN DAN AMALAN LESTARI PENJAGAAN ALAM SEKITAR DALAM PERUSAHAAN TEKSTAIL KECIL DAN SEDERHANA BANGLADESH

Oleh

MOHAMMAD IMTIAZ HOSSAIN

Januari 2021

Pengerusi : Profesor Madya Ong Tze San, PhD Fakulti : Sekolah Perniagaan dan Ekonomi

Dunia perniagaan semakin menyedari aspek penjagaan alam sekitar perlu diberi perhatian hasil daripada kesedaran para pengguna dalam membuat pilihan barangan yang digunakan agar tidak meninggalkan kesan negatif kepada alam sekitar. Kesediaan semua pihak untuk mengurangkan kesan ekologi telah membuka peluang baru dalam pasaran dan tekanan kepada pihak yang berkepentingan. Akibatnya, inisiatif hijau semakin berkembang dan menjadi penting dalam perancangan strategik organisasi, termasuklah perusahaan kecil sederhana (PKS). Walaupun terdapat perbezaan yang nyata di antara PKS dan syarikat perusahaan yang besar, bukan sahaja dari segi saiz, tetapi juga ciri-ciri yang lain, kesan yang ditinggalkan daripada gabungan beberapa PKS terhadap alam sekitar adalah lebih nyata daripada kesan yang ditinggalkan oleh syarikatsyarikat besar. Usaha mengadaptasi teknologi hijau yang diselaraskan oleh pihak yang berkepentingan dapat mengurangkan kesan negatif kepada alam sekitar. Justeru itu, objektif kajian ini ialah menentukan hubungkait di antara pengaruh pihak berkepentingan dengan amalan penjagaan alam sekitar yang lestari, dan menyelidik kesan perantaraan persepsi terhadap adaptasi teknologi hijau dalam kalangan PKS tekstil Bangladesh, di Dhaka, Bangladesh. Kajian ini menggunakan kaedah pasca positivis, kuantatif, deduktif, pengesahan dan keratan rentas. Soal selidik berstruktur digunakan dalam kajian ini untuk memperolehi data utama daripada 140 buah PKS. Tuan punya dan pengurus PKS menjadi sasaran sebagai unit pemerhatian kerana mereka ini mempunyai bidang kuasa tertinggi dan maklumat untuk melaksanakan perubahan strategik dalam perusahaan mereka. SPSS 23 dan Smart-PLS 3.2.9 digunakan untuk menganalisis data. Berdasarkan kepada data yang dianalisis tekanan pembeli, penglibatan komuniti, peraturan yang dikeluarkan oleh kerajaan, dan sokongan pengurusan mempunyai hubungkait yang positif dengan amalan lasteri penjagaan alam sekitar kecuali tekanan daripada pembekal. Persepsi tentang adaptasi teknologi hijau hanya menjadi perantara kepada tekanan pembekal. Pengintegrasian yang lemah di antara pihak yang berkepentingan dengan PKS tekstil Bangladesh dan kesederan tentang teknologi dan adaptasi yang rendah, menyokong penemuan dalam kajian ini. Hasil kajian ini menjadi perintis kepada usaha menyelidik kesan pengaruh pihak yang berkepentingan ke atas amalan lestari penjagaan alam sekitar yang disetarakan oleh persepsi adaptasi teknologi hijau dalam PKS tekstail di Bangladesh. Penemuan kajian ini memberikan petunjuk baharu untuk kajian pada masa akan datang dan beberapa implikasi penting kepada PKS yang memberi tumpuan kepada pembuatan dan penggubal polisi.



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

This thesis would not have been possible without the blessing of almighty, who led me to this journey and gave me this opportunity not only to learn but also build the determination to complete this thesis.

I would like to thank my supervisor, Associate Professor Dr. Ong Tze San for her continuous encouragement, inspiration and guidance to shape this study.

I also would like to express my sincere gratitude to my co-supervisor Associate Professor Dr. Ridzwana Bt Mohd Said and Dr. Siow May Ling for their insightful comments and constructive criticism of my dissertation.

Lastly, I want to express "many thanks" to my parents, family members, friends and research mentors for believing in me and giving me unconditional support.

This thesis was submitted to the Senate of the Universiti Putra Malaysia and has been accepted as fulfilment of the requirement for the degree of Master of Science. The members of the Supervisory Committee were as follows:

Ong Tze San, PhD

Associate Professor School of Business and Economics Universiti Putra Malaysia (Chairman)

Ridzwana binti Mohd Said, PhD

Associate Professor School of Business and Economics Universiti Putra Malaysia (Member)

Siow May Ling, PhD

Senior Lecturer Faculty of Design and Architecture Universiti Putra Malaysia (Member)

ZALILAH MOHD SHARIFF, PhD

Professor and Dean School of Graduate Studies Universiti Putra Malaysia

Date: 10 June 2021

TABLE OF CONTENTS

			Page
APPRODECLA LIST O LIST O LIST O	AK OWLED OVAL ARATIO OF TABL OF FIGU OF APPE	ES	i ii iv v vii xiii xiv xv xvi
CHAP	ГER		
4	TAME	AODICTION	
1		RODUCTION	1
	1.1	Introduction	1
	1.2 1.3	Background of the Study Problem Statement	2 6
	1.3	Research Questions	12
	1.4	Research Objectives	13
	1.6	Significance of the Study	13
	1.0	1.6.1 Organization and Management	13
		1.6.2 Local Communities and Stakeholder's	13
		Awareness	13
		1.6.3 Academia	14
		1.6.4 Policymakers	14
		1.6.5 Government and Environmental Agencies	14
	1.7	Scope of the Study	15
	1.8	Definitions of Key Terms	15
		1.8.1 Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs)	15
		1.8.2 Sustainability, Business Sustainability and	
		Environmental Sustainability (ES)	15
		1.8.3 Green Technologies Adoption (GTA)	16
		1.8.4 Stakeholders	16
	1.9	Operational Definition of the Key Terms	17
		1.9.1 Small and medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs)	17
		1.9.2 Stakeholders	17
		1.9.3 Green Technologies Adoption (GTA)	17
		1.9.4 Environmentally sustainable practices (ESP)	18
	1.10	Organization of the Thesis	18
	1.11	Summary	19
2	DEM	IEW OF LITEDATIDE	20
4	2.1	IEW OF LITERATURE Introduction	20 20
	2.1	Business Sustainability (BS)	20
	2.2	Environmental Sustainability (ES)	20

	2.4	Environ	mental Sustainability in Manufacturing SMEs	21
	2.5		able Manufacturing Practices in Textile Industry	
		of Bang	•	23
	2.6	_	on and Constraints of Sustainable Practices in	
		SME		24
	2.7		ors of Environmental Sustainability in SME	25
	2.8		ing Environmental Sustainability in SME	25
	2.9		echnology Adoption and ESP	26
	2.10		inning Theories	27
	2.10	2.10.1	Stakeholders Theory (ST)	27
		2.10.1	Technology–Organization–Environment (TOE)	27
		2.10.2	Framework	30
	2.11	Urmothe	esis Development	30
	2.11	• •		30
		2.11.1	Relationship between Buyers' Pressure (BP)	20
		0.11.0	and ESP	30
		2.11.2	Relationship between Community Engagement	2.1
			(CE) and ESP	31
		2.11.3	Relationship between Employees Involvement	
			(EI) and ESP	32
		2.11.4	Relationship between Government Regulations	
			(GR) and ESP	33
		2.11.5	Relationship between Management Support	
			(MS) and ESP	33
		2.11.6	Relationship between Suppliers Pressure (SP)	
			and ESP	34
		2.11.7	Relationship between Perception on Green	
			Technology Adoption (PGTA) and Buyers'	
			Pressure, Community Engagement, Employees'	
			Involvement, Government Regulations,	
			Management Support and Suppliers' Pressure	
			(BP, CE, EI, GR, MS, SP)	35
	2.12	Propose	d Research Framework	36
	2.13		Summary	37
		Chapter	S difficulty	
3	PESEA	рсн м	ETHODOLOGY	39
	3.1	Introduc		39
	3.2		phical Worldviews	39
	3.2			
		3.2.1	Research Design	40
	2.2	3.2.2	Strategies of Inquiry	40
	3.3		ng Procedures	42
		3.3.1	Selection of Study Area	42
		3.3.2	Selection of Respondents	43
		3.3.3	Selection of Sample Size	43
		3.3.4	Selection of Sampling Method	45
	3.4	•	Instrument	45
		3.4.1	Questionnaire Design and Operationalization of	
			Variables	46
		3.4.2	Measurement Scale	46
		3.4.3	Control Variables	47

	3.4.4 Demographic Variables	48
	3.4.5 Exogenous Variables	48
	3.4.6 Moderating Variables	50
	3.4.7 Endogenous Variable	50
3.5	Data Collection	50
3.6	Validity	51
	3.6.1 Response Rate	51
3.7	Pre-Test	52
3.8	Pilot Test	52
3.9	Data Preparation Procedures	53
	3.9.1 Data Coding and Editing	53
	3.9.2 Data Screening	53
	3.9.3 Non-response Bias Assessment	54
	3.9.4 Treatment of Missing Data	54
3.10	Statistical Tools	54
3.10	3.10.1 Statistical Package for the Social Sciences	51
	(SPSS)	54
	3.10.2 Partial Least Squares Structural Equation	5 1
	Modeling (PLS-SEM)	54
3.11	Type of Analysis	56
5.11	3.11.1 Normality Test	56
	3.11.2 Descriptive Analysis	56
	3.11.3 Factor Analysis	56
	3.11.4 Internal Consistency	57
	3.11.5 Convergent Validity	57
	3.11.6 Correlation Analysis	57
	3.11.7 Multicollinearity Analysis	58
3.12	Assessment of Models	58
3.12	3.12.1 Evaluation of Measurement Model	58
	3.12.2 Evaluation of Structural Models	58
3.13	Ethical Considerations	59
3.14	Chapter Summary	59
3.11	Chapter Bullinary	37
ANAT.	YSIS AND FINDINGS	60
4.1	Introduction	60
4.2	Preliminary Data Examination	60
	4.2.1 Non-response rate	60
	4.2.2 Non-response Bias	61
	4.2.3 Dealing with Missing Responses	61
	4.2.4 Data Cleaning and Screening	62
	4.2.5 Outliers	62
4.3	Assessment of Data Normality	62
4.4	Demographic Profile of the Respondents	63
4.5	Descriptive Statistics	64
	4.5.1 Central Tendencies Measurement of Constructs	64
	4.5.2 Correlation Matrix Analysis	64
4.6	Assessment of Structural Equation Modelling (SEM)	65
4.7	Assessment of the Measurement Model	66
	4.7.1 Construct Validity and Reliability	67
		0 /

		4.7.2	Result of Con	verge	ent Validi	ty		67
		4.7.3	Measurement				idity	70
	4.8	Assessi	nent of the Stru	ctura	l Model		•	71
		4.8.1	Coefficient of	Dete	ermination	$n(R^2)$		71
		4.8.2	Effect Size (f ²)				72
		4.8.3	Result of Mul		inearity (Inner	VIF)	72
		4.8.4	Predictive Rel				,	73
	4.9		Effect (Path Coe					73
	4.10		tion Effect Ana		,	,		74
	4.11		ry of the Hypot		Testing	Result		76
	4.12		r Summary					76
5	CONO	CLUSION	, RECOMMI	END.	ATIONS	AN	D FUTURE	
		ARCH	,					78
	5.1	Introdu	ction					78
	5.2	Recapit	ulation of the F	indin	gs of the	Study		78
	5.3		nent of Researc					79
	5.4	Discuss	sion on Effect of	Stak	keholder l	nfluer	nce	79
		5.4.1	Discussion on	Effe	ect of Bu	yers'	Pressure (BP)	
			on ESP					79
		5.4.2	Discussion	on	Effect	of	Community	
			Engagement (CE)	on ESP			80
		5.4.3	Discussion	on	Effect	of	Employees'	
			Involvement (81
		5.4.4		on	Effect	of	Government	
			Regulations (C					82
		5.4.5	Discussion on	Eff	ect of M	anage	ment Support	
			(MS) on ESP	T. 00			D (GD)	83
		5.4.6	Discussion on	Effe	ct of Supp	liers	Pressure (SP)	0.4
		5.4.7	on ESP		1	c	C , C ,1	84
		5.4.7			noderatin			
			perception on towards stal		der inf			
			environmental				, ,	86
	5.5	Contrib	outions of Findir		amaomiy	pract	ices (ESF)	89
	5.5	5.5.1	Academic Con		itions			89
		5.5.2	Practical Cont					90
		5.5.3	Policy Contrib					91
	5.6		ions of the Stud		11			92
	5.7		tions for Future		arch			93
	5.8	Conclu		Ttose	aren			93
	2.0	Concru	~-~ **					,,
	FERENC							94
	PENDIC							125
		F STUD						135
LIS'	T OF PU	BLICAT	IONS					136

LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
1.1	Definition of SMEs in Bangladesh	17
3.1	Summary of research design	42
3.2	Number of textile companies in Dhaka	44
3.3	Questionnaire's details description	47
3.4	Questions for company's demographic profile	48
3.5	Response rate	52
3.6	Reliability test for pilot test	53
4.1	Non-response bias	61
4.2	Demographic profile of companies and respondents	63
4.3	Descriptive statistics	64
4.4	Descriptive correlations	65
4.5	Internal consistency and convergence validity results	68
4.6	Discriminant validity – Fornell and Lacker criterion	70
4.7	Results of Heterotrait-Monotrait ratio (HTMT)	70
4.8	R-square result	71
4.9	F-square result	72
4.10	Result of multicollinearity – Inner VIF values	72
4.11	Result of predictive relevance	73
4.12	Path coefficient result	74
4.13	Moderation analysis result	74
4.14	Summary of all hypotheses results	76

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure		Page
2.1	Research Framework (Developed by Researcher)	37
4.1	Measurement Model	69
4.2	Structural Model with t-values (Bootstrapping result)	75



LIST OF APPENDICES

Apper	ndix	Page
A	Questionnaire	125
B 1	Respondent Profile	131
B 2	Modifications of Questionnaire during Validity and Pre-test	131
В 3	Rules of thumb on the range of coefficients	131
C 1	Result of univariate outliers based on standardized values	132
C 2	Assessment of data normality	133
C 3	Discriminant Validity- Cross Loadings	134

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AVE Average Variance Extracted

BTMA Bangladesh Textile Mills Association

BS Business Sustainability

BP Buyers' Pressure

CA Cronbach's Alpha

CE Community Engagement

CR Composite Reliability

DoE Department of Environment

ES Environmental Sustainability

ESP Environmental Sustainability Practices

EI Employees' Involvement

ETP Effluent Treatment Plant

GR Government Regulations

GT Green Technology

GTA Green Technology Adoption

GM Green Manufacturing

GMP Green Manufacturing Practices

HTMT Heterotrait-Monotrait Ratio

MS Management Support

PGTA Perception on Green Technology Adoption

SEM Structure Equation Modelling

SDGs Sustainable Development Goals

SM Sustainable Manufacturing

SMP Sustainability Manufacturing Practices

ST Stakeholder Theory

TOE Technology, Organization and Environment Theory



CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Introduction

The environmental aspects of business activities are gradually becoming consciously recognized (Jansson et al, 2017). Consumers' awareness is increasing due to the environmental influence in their consumption preferences and their readiness to mitigate their ecological track. This has produced new market opportunities and stakeholders' pressure. The impact of operations on the environment seem to be better understood by the larger businesses organizations rather than the small ones (Schmidt et al., 2018; Chassé, 2017; Loorbach & Wijsman, 2013) due to the former being more dominant with better organizational control, financial stability, and higher tendency to generate sustainability strategies (Potts, 2010), have robust expediency to resources (Lucas, 2004) and ease of determining environmental pollution (Hasan et al., 2020; Salimzadeh, 2016).

Practically, SMEs are different from large firms concerning not only in their size but also their unique characteristics such as an informal management style, owner-manager authority in all decision-making exercise as well as strong community engagement (CE). But SMEs combined impact on environment is significantly higher than big companies (Dey et al., 2018). Undoubtedly, among all the firms, manufacturing firms are considered as the main users of natural resources, so the impact on natural environment in these firms is higher than any other industry. Besides, manufacturing sectors deal with material consumption and generation of wastes (Bhanot et al., 2017; Govindan et al., 2018). It is their liability to ensure that the environment or human life is not affected by their actions.

To maintain firms' competitiveness the importance of stakeholders is very crucial (Bielicki et al., 2019). Fassin (2009) and Kassinis & Vafeas (2006), state stakeholder pressure as the capability and power of stakeholders to impact a firm by swaying its organizational choices. Lee (2008) states that environmental sustainability (ES) could be achieved when all parties are engaged in sustainable practices.

Stakeholders in organizations could be broadly categorised into primary and secondary groups. The primary indicates any class of stakeholder engaged in a formal relationship with a given organization (Quiroga-Calderón et al., 2018). The secondary stakeholder, on the other hand are groups comprise of the media and special interest groups, which are not involved in formal transaction dealings (Quiroga-Calderón et al., 2018). However, they have an impact on establishing company's reputation (Quiroga-Calderón et al., 2018; Parmar et al., 2010). Primary stakeholders are more relevant than the secondary stakeholders concerning the Environmental Management System (EMS)

development based on the recent study by (Shubham et al., 2017; Ghassim & Bogers, 2019 and Frondel 2003).

Based on this research, the terms environmental management and Sustainable Green Practices are interchangeably used to refer to the operations and management activities of the individual textile SME which has been considered as the unit of analysis.

The covered areas in this chapter would be the research background, definitions of the key terms, background of the study, problem statement, objectives, research questions, significance of the study, scope of the study, organization of the thesis and the summary of the chapters. The individual textile SME is considered as the unit of analysis. Based on this research, the terms environmental management and sustainable green practices are interchangeably used to refer to the operations and management activities of the individual textile SMEs.

1.2 Background of the Study

In the global economy, small and medium- sized enterprises (SMEs) play an essential role, and are of pivotal importance to ensure poverty reduction, employment generation, (Battistella et al., 2018), innovation (Ghassim & Bogers, 2019) and prosperity (Sarango-Lalangui et al., 2018); both in the developed and developing nations. Besides, they contribute significantly to job creation and poverty eradication in emerging economies through their labour - intensive manufacturing processes and substantial rate of employment (de Kok et al., 2013). 90% of global businesses are SMEs and they generate 50 to 60 % job opportunities (Gandhi et al., 2018; Shields & Shelleman, 2015; World Bank, 2015; Jayeola, 2015). SMEs provide the strength and foundation of a stable economic development and vitality, through the engagement and development of emerging entrepreneurial talent and capacity building to withstand the storm in multidimensional competitions (Sahoo & Yadav, 2018; Wiesner et al., 2017; Ong, 2015).

In the high-income countries, SMEs contribute to over 55% of GDP and over 65% of total employment. On the other hand, in the context of low-income countries, SMEs and informal enterprises, account for over 60% of GDP and over 70% of total employment, contributing to over 95% of total employment and about 70% of GDP in middle-income countries (Zafar & Mustafa, 2017). Thus, SMEs are important sources for wealth formation and innovation (Williamson et al., 2008).

Consequently, the importance of SMEs could not be denied. The engagement of SMEs in sustainability, would create numerous benefits, such as improvement in competition (Jansson et al., 2017), better product and service quality, better community relations, adequate material utilization, and staff commitment (Jyoti (2019; Pillai et al., 2015). The total environmental impact of large firms could be considerably higher than the united

impact of SMEs (Musa & Chinniah, 2016; Wattanapinyo & Mol, 2013). Previously, the European Commission (2002), has projected that SMEs are accountable for half of the waste and pollution among EU countries. Hillary (1995) also believes that business and industry are the core contributors for global warming. Harris et al., (2017) calculate sustainability measures could lead to a drop in global economic output of between 5% to 20%. Hence, sustainability is considered as the main challenge not only to people and planet but also in economic context (Ghazilla et al., 2015). Environmental pollution creates more than 100 of the world's most deadly diseases (Xu et al., 2019). Recent bushfires in Australia, has burnt more than 48 million acres of land (CDP, 2020). While bushfires are regular occurrences in Australia, reports have estimated an increase of 40 percent environmental issues between 2011 to 2016 (Dutta et al., 2016). Another example of the serious climate shift is the Monsoon rains in Southeast Asia, that have been arriving earlier in recent years accompanied by increasingly heavier rainfall (CDP, 2020). Human health is being significantly affected. Air pollution alone has been calculated to be causing 6 to 7 million premature deaths per year. In Europe, over 400.000 people are estimated to die prematurely due to air pollution (EEA, 2019). According to a recent World Health Organization (WHO) report, deadly diseases and accidents kill 12.6 million people a year, about one in four or 23 percent of all deaths (Osman et al., 2017). From the Rio Earth Summit in 1992, sustainable business has been identified as the solution to the global warming. The green management concept has risen the green technology (GT), green products and green services to the world. The challenge has been identified by Brundtland Report (1987) by recognizing "... humanity has the capacity to develop sustainability to meet the needs of the present without undermining the future generations' ability to fulfil their own requirements". In this respect, ES could serve as a catalyst to transform conventional business into sustainable business (Roxas & Chadee, 2012).

SMEs have paid little attention to sustainability (Revell et al., 2010) although they are the higher (up to 70%) polluters (Mitchell et al., 2020; Hoogendoorn et al., 2015; Johnson, 2015). However, in the Asia Pacific region, SMEs are responsible for 40-50% of industrial pollution whereas, in the UK, 60% of the nation's commercial waste and 8 out of 10 major pollution incidents are traceable to the SMEs (Koirala, 2019; Environment Agency, 2002). Therefore, the SMEs have vital roles to play in the achievement of ES.

Previously, environmental management has been neglected by the organization deliberately since it is considered as cost riser and a constraint to competitiveness (Shrivastava & Hart, 1995). However, given increasing consumer and supervisory focus, sustainability is gradually accepted as a competitive advantage. Thus, sustainability is at the centre of the top managements' agenda. Not less than half of the sourcing executives in a survey believed that sustainable sourcing has a place in the' top managements' agenda in their firm (Sharma et al., 2019). This finding however, is greatly different in the region.

In the context of Bangladesh, the total economic entities are 7.81 million (BBS, 2013), whereby 99% of formal business enterprises are occupied by SMEs which contribute 25% of the GDP in the country (World Bank, 2018; ADB Institute, 2016). Precisely, SME Foundation (2018) reveals approximately 69,902 SMEs in Bangladesh engage 1,937,809 employees. Its turnover is approximately BDT 573.510 million annually. A large proportion of government revenue in various forms such as income tax, VAT, customs duties, etc. are gathered from these industries. It is evident from that SMEs make impressive contributions to the Bangladeshi economic development and without doubts, significantly impact the environment and the social community. Although most of the nations are moving towards greener economy (Jia et al, 2020), Bangladesh is yet to develop green policies in the diverse industries especially in the garments sector.

However, the capability of technology to develop sustainable business and community is widely acknowledged with several constrains (Soni, 2016). The usage of green technology (GT) allows companies to become more efficient and environmentally friendly by reducing the waste and performing green practices. The belief is that GT offers cost-effectiveness and mitigate environmental harm (Foroozanfar et al., 2017). GT involves the application of numerous methods and materials which are needed in producing energy to non-toxic cleaning products. SMEs require a successful appreciation of the complete stakeholder's objectives adopted within organizational practices to benefit from GT.

Green practices literature related to the significance of the stakeholders in SMEs environmental initiatives are subject to contrary opinions. Hillary (2004) opines that local government provides higher effect on the general environmental practices of SMEs compared to the customers. On the other hand, several scholars (Li 2013; Zhao et al., 2009; Wang 2012; Qi et al., 2008), claim that Government Regulations (GR) regarding environment do not produce efficient impact and generate enough pressure required to ensure the attainment of environmental performance goals. But it is undeniable that the government has the power to impose any policy to the business. Many governments are becoming conscious and imposing rules and regulations. A report by Mckinsey, (2019) provides some examples which include the 13th Five Year Plan 2016–2020 in China, France Circular Economy Law-2021 and Zero Waste Campaign by Turkey in 2019. In many other countries, these similar initiatives are being proposed.

A number of the sustainability related issues are discussed with useful insights in the context of SMEs in the developed countries, but little emphasis has been given on how SMEs in developing countries could be eco pro-active with their less-developed institutional framework (Demuijnck & Ngnodjom, 2013; Jamali et al., 2015).

The relationship between buyers and supply company plays an important role in improving Environmental Sustainability Practices (ESP). By sharing one another's capability, resources and working in proximity, this initiative could be fostered. As there have huge investment involves to set up green compliance, the strategic collaboration (Suh & Lee, 2018), cost profit negotiation is crucial. The significance of buyers' pressure

in exploring an organization's environmental initiatives as a concept has become the area of extensive focus by researchers (Helmig, 2016; Baden et al., 2009). The starting point of environmental practices lies in the information exchange among buyers, suppliers and company.

Suppliers also play a vital role in enabling businesses move toward having a higher environmental performance, besides, the buyers. Suppliers may aid firms to appreciate ecological impacts concerning the supply chain (Lamming & Hampson, 1996). Under some circumstances, the supplier finds crucial to fulfil numerous environmental standards, especially where organizations relay on few key products from the suppliers. Thus, supply partners allow for holistic appreciation of ecological issues, encouragement of insights, and sharing of resource based on their unique interests, viewpoints, and collaborations.

Employees' Involvement (EI) in sustainability issues could make the company to significantly enjoy the journey. A good example is Marks & Spencer, which ensures that each store gives its best to ensure the sustainability of its goals, sustainability of the champions in every one of its 1,380 stores. The issue is not many businesses have yet found out how to connect the principles and advocacy for sustainability of their workforce with the employees' daily work and the operations of the company.

People and places provide organizations with basis for having a relationship and sustaining interest in the community initiatives to ensure organizational excellence through a holistic management approach (Shakya, 2019). Considering the above ideas, the concept of sustainability indicates the community has a link to organizational goals alongside those of the stakeholders. Company should focus on establishing collaboration, partnership, strategic relationship, negotiation with community to initiate or improve ESP.

A large number of theoretical and empirical researches (Yang 2018; Jayashree et al., 2015; Tung et al., 2011; Lauring & Thompsen, 2009) have been conducted recently to change the mind-set of the management to be proactive on adopting green practices, since it is considered as one of the strategic tools for management to reduce the firm's negative impact on environment. However, contradictory results are found from different researches (Roy et al., 2020; Dixon-Fowler et al., 2013). The literature (El-Kassar & Kumar, 2018) argues that when employees believe that their organizations support sustainability, they perform in a sustainable way regardless of their personal values. But Roy et al. (2020) find internal stakeholders, such as the management has insignificant relationship with green practices.

There have been some studies on general overview of green industry (Reza et al, 2017), social business practices of SMEs in ISO 26000 perspective (Hasan, 2016), environmental effect of garments factory waste (Masud et al., 2019) in Bangladesh. However, researches on the ESP in the Bangladeshi firms especially on SMEs context

are very limited. In actual fact, there is no well-grounded study which deals with the stakeholder's integration and ESP in Bangladeshi SMEs including the indirect effect of Perception on Green Technology Adoption (PGTA). The inconsistent results encourage conducting this research with the aim to develop a single integrated conceptual framework to examine the relationships between stakeholders and ESP within Bangladeshi textile SMEs. This is done by using classifications of environmental management drivers, practices and performance proposed by previous studies.

Therefore, based on the background given above, the issues begging for attention concerning the present study are discussed in the subsequent sub-heading under problem statement.

1.3 Problem Statement

Small firms fail to meet up with the transition which takes place in the global front despite the numerous social, economic, and political pressures in inspiring companies to emphasize on environmentally sustainable practices (Ayuso & Navarrete-Báez, 2017). Numerous surveys confirm that SMEs are accountable for most environmental pollution (Mitchell et al., 2020; Demirel & Ozturk, 2019) and this is an under-researched area (Demirel & Ozturk 2019, Hampton 2018). Previous research by Jayeola (2015), Hoogendoorn et al. (2015) and Johnson (2015) identify that SMEs are responsible for 70 percent of manufacturing pollution. Quintás et al. (2018) estimate that SMEs produces 60 percent of carbon emissions. Manufacturing SMEs accounts for a major portion of the world's consumption of resources, air and water pollution and generation of waste (Koirala, 2019). A report from The European Commission, Directorate General Environment, indicates that SMEs produce more than 50% of the commercial and industrial waste (Woodard, 2021; Halila, 2007; Revell et al., 2010), and the Environment Agency (2003) estimates that 60% of commercial wastes and 80% of pollution accidents are traceable among SMEs in the UK. However, less than 33% of U.S. businesses have initiated practices toward reducing their carbon footprint (Weber & Matthews, 2008). SMEs in the developing countries have lot of barriers to implement sustainability such as access to finance, access to non-financial inputs, high production cost, high tax constraint. However, due to a lack of recent data and the expense of accompanying the required surveys, the results could not be used extensively. The suppliers are prepared to deliver, but there are finance problems and other production constraints (Yin & Wang, 2017). While abundant literature is available on sustainability practices in large organizations, the adoption of sustainability especially in environmental practices by SMEs has generally gained less attention in academia (Moss et al., 2008).

Many researchers have spent time on investigation of environmental management on SMEs (Armas-cruz et al, 2017), such as environmental responsibility in manufacturing (Curkovic & Sroufe, 2016), ESP and firm performance (Adebambo et al, 2014), attitude and awareness towards environmental management practices (Weerasiri & Zhengang, 2012), factors drive lather industry in sustainable initiative in Brazil (Graziani et al, 2018), Strategic intent in the management of green environment within SMEs of UK (Worthington and Patton, 2005), challenges of Malaysian SMEs to go green (Musaa &

Chinniah, 2015), sustainable performance (Wang et al, 2018), sustainability development of SMEs (Hsu et al, 2017), impact of green manufacturing on ES (Abubakr, et al., 2020), sustainable practices in SMEs (Sarango-Lalangui et al, 2018), sustainability assessment for manufacturing sector (Torelli et al., 2020; Sangwan et al, 2018), sustainable business model for SMEs (Battistella et al, 2018). Their findings are not always positive and correlated. Different results are obtained in different sector and different contexts.

Based on the review of literature, it is conclusive that, most of the researches have conducted their researches within the context of developed countries. The latter is due to human resources and knowledge deficiency (Ramasobana & Fatoki, 2014), less awareness (Demuijnck & Ngnodjom, 2013), shortage of training concerning sustainability (Williams & Schaefer, 2013), unwillingness of stakeholders (Roy et al., 2013), and owner-managers' attitude about money as well as their selfishness (Yousuf & Bhutta, 2012). Besides, the perception about ES in developing countries is affected by numerous unique external factors, which comprise of poor socio-economic and regulatory environments, corruption, and insufficient government support (Jamali et al., 2015).

In the context of Bangladesh, especially the garments SMEs, they are also lagging behind in the adoption of ES due to numerous barriers. As an environmental sensitive industry, textile sector has caught the attention of researchers for investigation. Tumpa et al. (2019) list out several barriers in greening in the textile industry of Bangladesh. There are internal factors such as top management support (MS), corporate vision, current organizational structure, current financial capability of the company, and proper environmental measurement system (Sarkar et al., 2020). Boffelli et al. (2019) enrich the literature by providing other barriers; green compliance training plan, regular allocation of budget for operations and maintenance of green initiatives, proper communication concerning green practices, employee involvements, alignment of the company's strategies with greening. (Das et al., 2020) emphases on upgrading the existing compliance management strategy for other standards (product quality, building safety, etc.) position of the textile firm which could increase the proximity with suppliers. Additionally, external factors such as government policies and incentives, buyer demands, market demand for low cost clothing, pressures from the competitors, poor collaboration with the suppliers, technology constraints, pressure from the investors (which is extreme in Bangladesh, as overwhelmingly, most companies are foreign buyers dominated), consumers' low green purchasing behaviour (Hossain et al., 2020) are responsible for the development of an environmental friendly industry. Moreover, the supply chain research suggests that due to conflicts between the diverse stakeholders, have also impede green initiatives (Moktadir et al., 2018; Ling et al. 2015).

One of the most substantial impacts to the global economy and the environment are created by the textile industry. By 2018, the global textile industry's annual sales (including the apparel and footwear sectors) are estimated to be greater than US \$2 trillion (Lee, 2017). The textile industry generates one of the greatest detrimental effects to the environment because of the usage of chemical materials and processes and the

significance of their market size (Gardetti & Muthu, 2015). The consistent energy supply and a large quantity of water in the textile factories are prerequisites and, at the same time, endanger the environment through the development of large quantities of pollutants (Ahmed et al., 2018). Another study refers this industry as a "Stylist killer" as it accounts for 10% of the global emissions (I am renewed, 2020). There is an eventual destruction of the soil, water, and the environment due to the accumulated harmful chemical residuals used in textile production, which are released, often untreated and directly into water sources (Oecotextiles, 2013). These harmful effects become feasible all through the life cycle of textile products (Resta et al., 2016), which include the cultivation of raw materials, raw material production processes (e.g., fibres, yarns, and textiles), garment production processes (e.g., assembly and packaging), and consumption of manufactured textile products for example the end user, recycling, and discarding in the textile industry (Peters et al., 2019; Khan & Islam 2015). In addition, an excessive amount of water, fossil fuels, and electrical energy are consumed apart from the chemical discharge into water sources during textile manufacturing processes, such as dyeing, printing, and finishing (Lee, 2017; Sivaramakrishnan 2009). For example, in global terms, 40 % of clothing is produced from natural cotton fibre, which apparently is one of the most chemically dependent crops that consumes 10 % of all chemicals and 25 % of the insecticides used in agricultural industries worldwide (Lee, 2017). Currently, more than 60% of textiles are made of polyester and other petroleum-derived fibres (Ögmundarson et al., 2020). However, in Bangladesh, Natural Resources Defences Council (NRDC) has reported, industrial pollution accounts for 60% of pollution in the Dhaka watershed, and the textile industry is the second largest contributor. Textile manufacturing in the country has a massive ecological impact, generating as much as 300 metric tons of wastewater per ton of fabric, with a host of harmful chemicals (iamrenew.com, 2019). Textile factories produce huge toxic effluents containing colours, sodium sulphate, sodium chloride, sodium hydroxide, in the dyeing process that cause water and air pollution (Peters et al., 2019; Rahman, Ho, & Rusli, 2014; Islam & Khan, 2014; Islam, Mahmud, Faruk, & Billah, 2011; Patwary, 2016) and several health problems (Alay et al., 2016).

These textiles often produce waste water from garments or fabrics 'after dyeing' and 'after washing' (Pattnaik, 2019). The produced waste water is called 'Dye Bath Water' after dyeing, and the produced waste water is called 'Wash Water' after washing. Dye bath water contains higher solids (4-5%) whereas washing water contains just 0.5-1%. Based on the facts described above, it is important to implement a technology that could process such waste water and convert it into reusable water (Osman et al., 2017).

Report by Partnership for Cleaner Textile Pact shows that 719 washing, dyeing and finishing factories in Bangladesh discharge wastewater to the rivers in its capital city, Dhaka. Despite being encircled by four rivers, Dhaka's water supply to its 18 million inhabitants is being endangered by the exceptionally high levels of pollution. Thus, environment demand for a more sustainable textile production and consumption.

Green technologies could be an effective solution for improving sustainable green practices (Iravani et al., 2017). The textile industry would also have the benefit of constantly using the same water in the dying process; the salt used for dyeing may also be reused or sold in the market. Through its development, GT has been able to provide an environmentally friendly commodity in both the process and the greening of an industry (Osman et al., 2017).

Environmental technologies include technology to avoid emissions, monitor emissions and systems for contamination management (Klassen & Whybark, 1999) GT is used as proper tools which are designed to enhance efficiency in production and also managing industrial wastes. Such tools could remarkably help to produce sustainable products because of cogent utilization of natural resources and also reduction of waste generation that minimizes the power of consumption (Mirjalili & Zohoori, 2016). Severo et al. (2017) believe that cleaner production and environmental management could affect sustainable product innovation and financial performance. With respect to the latter, green innovation could aid companies to cover their environmental costs through the increase in resource productivity (Burgos-Jiménez et al., 2013). Based on the study conducted by Sheldon and Atherton (2011), there are many green technologies and systems which could reduce correctional institutions' expenses. In addition, implementing environmental practices could help companies to develop new landscape to extend business and increase their market share (Chen, 2015). An improved nonfinancial performance includes increased customer retention, new consumers, and an enhanced brand image and credibility of a firm to provide long-term operational objective (Burgos-Jiménez et al., 2013). Chen (2015) proposes that the "first-mover value" would be achieved by businesses that are pioneers of green innovation, i.e. higher product rates, an enhanced brand profile, new market prospects and competitive advantages. Demand for new, greener goods and the opportunity to cut costs through resource efficiency are significant drivers for green SMEs. At the tail end of survival, numerous SMEs owners/managers who are severely reliant, and are trying to figure out ways to restrict and control the amount of money spent on electricity has become a common item in the cost composition of SMEs in recent years (Chong et al., 2012). The identification and adoption of the energy efficiency measures based on changing times require SMEs to consider their sustainable green practices, market image and market presence position (Silva, 2020; Hirsig et al., 2014). Moreover, (Mirjalili & Zohoori, 2016) it is important to note that GT has the following values: a) It reduces environmental deterioration; b) It minimises greenhouse gases (GHG) emission to zero and its utilization is safe because it enhances healthy and improved environment for all and sundry; c) Natural resources and energy are conserved; and d) Renewables utilization is enhanced.

Considering the harmful effect of textile dyeing causes, the government of Bangladesh labels this industry industries as "Red industries" (most polluted) under the Bangladesh Environment Conservation Act, 1995 and the Environment Conservation Rules, 1997 and demand green technologies such as Effluent Treatment Plants (ETPs) mandatory for the factories. But higher cost of ETPs has restricted majority of 5,000 export-oriented dyeing factories from setting or using them. Department of Environment (DoE) claims that they have issued ETP installation permission to 1,376 textile factories. According

to Bangladesh Textile Mills Association (BTMA), the country has approximately 450 spinning mills, 1,200 weaving mills and around 5,000 export-oriented dyeing factories. So, the technological usages are very low.

Two deadly incidents occurred in 2013 in Bangladesh. 1,136 workers died when a textile factory building, known as Rana Plaza collapsed. In another incident,112 employees lost the lives due to a fatal fire at Tazreen Fashions. As a consequence, a nation- wide inspection has been conducted by EU, ILO, foreign buyers supported by local government; and 39 factories have been closed down for posing an immediate danger to workers due to the unavailability of green structures (Osman et al., 2017). A study conducted by Hossain (2018) discovers special financial support, lack of technological knowledge, and awareness from stakeholders are the factors that have restricted the adoption of green technologies in Bangladesh. Thus, this study intends to investigate the indirect effects between PGTA and ESP in textile SMEs of Bangladesh.

Environmental innovation requires multi stakeholders' participation due to its distinctive characteristics of double externality and ambiguity (Salem et al., 2020; De Marchi, 2012). Without understanding the relationship between stakeholders and the firms as well as the stakeholders influence, it is impossible to assess the impact of stakeholders into any kind of managerial strategy including environmentally sustainable green practices and adoption of green technologies (de Bakker et al., 2019). More or less proactive or reactive environmental strategy is undertaken by companies based on the Stakeholder Influence (SI). When firms are keen to take actions and go beyond the law, they indicate proactive and reactive firms. These are characterized by just complying with the regulations. If there is a gap or discrepancies between the stakeholders and green practices, then it influences the operation and overall environmental pollution. These gaps could be created from the following issues such as lack of awareness, lack of resources, policy gap, and communication gap.

Besides these gaps, the empirical evidence is also inconsistent regarding the impact of stakeholder influence and environmental practices. The degree of pressure varies as the importance of all stakeholders are not similar (Betts, Wiengarten, & Tadisina, 2015; Delmas & Toffel, 2004). Tatoglu, Bayraktar, and Arda (2015) study the adoption of environmental policies in Turkey. They found primary stakeholders significantly influence the environmental practices in the firms. Banerjee, Iyer, and Kashyap (2003) also found internal stakeholders and regulators are significantly impacted on' ecological behaviour of the firms. Betts, Wiengarten, & Tadisina (2015) and Ni (2012) also found constant results. But, Delmas, (2009) claims secondary stakeholders have a great influence on the environmental behaviour of the company. More precisely, Salimzadeh (2016) provides the evident that government does not appear to be an effective sustainability driver for Australian SMEs. But Kerr (2006); and Salimzadeh (2016) devise that owner/managers, employees of SMEs are an internal group which is effective in the adoption of sustainability in regional SMEs. Quiroga-Calderón et al., (2018) found no evidence with regulator and green practice. So, there have disparity on the various stakeholders' impact on green practices.

Dawal et al. (2015) investigate on Malaysian SMEs and found advance manufacturing technology has positive effect on firms' capabilities. Umar et al. (2016) found technological innovations influence green practices. Horbach, Rammer, and Rennings (2012) claim technologies determine the intensity of the environmental adoption. Demirel and Kesidou (2011) state the level of investment on green technology integrates cleaner production with technology adoption. Stucki and Woerter (2016) provide a different prospective as they claim different types of environmental policy influence the environmental adoption. Frondel, Horbach, and Rennings (2007) also investigate the same situation in Germany and the results suggest that the adoption of cleaner production technologies rarely depends on regulatory measures.

Despite the importance of green technology in improving environmental performance, the strategic management literature has failed to explain whether and how green technology could contribute to this performance (Watson et al., 2010). The few existing qualitative (Seidel et al., 2013; Petrini & Pozzebon, 2009) and empirical research papers (Mithas et al., 2010; Wang et al., 2015) confirm that these technologies have positive effect on the achievement of environmental aims. However, certain theoretical (Bengtsson & Ågerfalk, 2011) and empirical studies (Stucki, 2019; Przychodzen et al., 2018; Hottenrott et al., 2016) highlight both positive and negative effects on the adoption or use of these technologies on environmental performance.

Particularly, GTA may require major investment in physical assets, machineries, employee's knowledge, the technical and managerial integration and coordination between different business functions of the firm, the commitment by the top management team and engagement of its stakeholders (Forés, 2019; Wang et al., 2015; Chan et al., 2018). Sa'adi & Zainordin (2019) found that majority of the firms in Sarawak refuse to use green technology due to limited knowledge and expertise. In another study, Yacob et al., (2019) used GTA as a moderator with the intention to use green and sustainable green practices without embedding the stakeholders' prospective. The moderation analysis of their study reveals that GTA does not have an influence on environmental sustainability in manufacturing SMEs.

The lack of comprehensiveness and empirical inconsistency have led to a degree of controversy within academia regarding the sign of the effect of green technology adoption at the firm levels, which no research to date appears to have resolved. Indeed, to the best of the researcher knowledge, there is no empirical study that explores the possibility of moderating effect of PGTA on stakeholder influence and ESP in the textile SMEs in Bangladesh. This study applies the principles of the stakeholder theory and Technology Organization Environment (TOE) theory in an attempt to fill that gap. To do that it is indispensable to understand the existing scenario in the sustainable environmental management among textile SMEs in Bangladesh.

Furthermore, Hasan (2016) conducts a study of social responsibility on SMEs in Bangladesh. He reconfirms the "attitude-behaviour" gap but the form and scale of the company and the academic attainment of the owner-managers have no major influence on the extent of adoption by Bangladeshi manufacturing SMEs.

The lack of environmental practices has created a monumental problem among the companies of textile manufacturers as well as the lifestyles of customers and product purchasing patterns due to the extreme negative environmental contribution by the textile industries (Khan & Islam, 2015). Hence, textile companies have the duty of embarking on initiatives that can stimulate their stakeholders which include the owners, supply chains, and retailers to be engaged in eco-friendly textile business practices (de Abreu, 2015).

However, there is a huge gap in understanding the influence of various stakeholders in the manufacturing industry specially textile SMEs and their environmentally sustainable performance in Bangladesh. So, the purpose of this research is to keep the gap in mind and reach out for the objective of this research by identifying the relationship between the stakeholder influence and environmental sustainability practices in the textile SMEs in Bangladesh as well as the moderating effect of perception on green technologies adoption (PGTA).

1.4 Research Questions

Based on the problems encountered in the previous studies which have been discussed and elaborated, the following research questions are formulated to guide the researcher in the present study:

- a) What is the relationship between the stakeholder influence and environmental sustainability practices in textile SMEs in Bangladesh?
- b) Does perception on green technology adoption moderates the relationship between stakeholder influence and environmental sustainability practices in textile SMEs in Bangladesh?

The perception on green technology adoption as the moderator variable is introduced in this study, to detect the relationships between the independent variable and the dependent variable which have not been included in the previous studies.

1.5 Research Objectives

The research objectives are drawn out in line with the problem statements and indicated below:

- To evaluate the relationship between stakeholder influence and environmental sustainability practices in Textile SMEs of Bangladesh.
- b) To determine the moderating effect of perception on Green Technology Adoption in the relationship between Stakeholder Influence and Environmental Sustainability Practices in Textile SMEs of Bangladesh.

1.6 Significance of the Study

The following parties specified below are to benefit from the research outcomes.

1.6.1 Organization and Management

Recent organizational and management efforts have emphasized on the concept of economic and social sustainability, but little attention and study have been undertaken on the adoption of environmental sustainability practices (ESP) by SMEs. Despite the disagreements about the degree of sustainable practices for SMEs, a lack of clarity also exists in determining the best way to implement sustainable practices by adopting GT in the context of small enterprises (Salimzadeh et al., 2013) and, in particular, the roles of SMEs in such practices practically are not clear. The results of this study would provide a guide for entrepreneurial management on policy development and implementation that is consistent with the involvement in sustainable activities in SMEs.

1.6.2 Local Communities and Stakeholder's Awareness

The economic and political drivers at national and international levels are essential to establish a sustainability framework. Local communities have imperative role to maintain the sustainability within the region (Helmig, 2016). In addition, public scrutiny and sanctioning by the community make SMEs activities at the regional levels highly sensitive (Smith & Oakley, 1994). SMEs in the regional areas could also take advantage on the sustainability initiatives due to flexible organizational structure and close relationships with local communities (Sarbutts, 2003). This research is expected to raise awareness among employees, as well as customers and suppliers to implement sustainability.

1.6.3 Academia

This research would contribute to the existing knowledge in sustainability literature, by developing a conceptual model that would be useful for researchers in understanding further research on the related areas of study. Many studies have analysed the environmental sustainability issues, barriers, and adoption. However, the studies on the implementation of green technologies among manufacturing SMEs in Bangladesh are scarce. Part of the aim of this research is to provide a practical contribution to further enrich the knowledge and understanding on Green Technology Adoption (GTA) among the manufacturing textile SMEs. There is a necessity to initiate more studies in Bangladesh because many academicians around the world such as in China, India, Brazil and Australia have been working on the sustainability issues. Therefore, the study intends to bridge the literature gap by providing data that could support the subject matter to enable researchers to establish more study in a similar scope in future. Moreover, (Sing et al., 2019), identify external stakeholders include consumers, customers, local and public authorities and stakeholder theory provides the guideline to recognize the external impacts of various stakeholders on SMEs environmental operations. This research would examine and validate both internal and external factors.

1.6.4 Policymakers

This research intends to encourage the policymakers in Bangladesh to acknowledge the current progress on green practices among small and medium-sized enterprises by providing the insights of the related issues. The policymakers would also understand the challenges faced by the SMEs concerning the execution of green technologies adoptions (GTA) and the efforts that could be exercised by the policymakers to further improve on the current situation. Besides, the policymakers would be able to effectively outline the measures required for planning, developing and executing the GTA among SMEs in Bangladesh. Further development of SMEs to the next level in green practices and application of green practices in their current setting is possible when there is sufficient support and resources from the policymakers.

1.6.5 Government and Environmental Agencies

Findings of this study can assist the Government and environmental agencies in establishing the extent to which companies have adopted GT. This can also help the Government to know the factors that companies take into consideration before adopting GT. Such information can hopefully be used to develop ways of mitigating the identified challenges.

1.7 Scope of the Study

The research entails the examination of sustainable green practices in manufacturing SMEs, especially the textile sector. The unit of analysis is the textile manufacturing SMEs registered with the Bangladesh Textile Mills Association (BTMA). According to BTMA (2019) there are 241 Dyeing, 399 Spinning, 809 Weaving mills and 246 Washing mills (textile learner, 2014) in Bangladesh. This study would also cover the stakeholder integration and GTA especially in the SMEs of Dhaka. The capital city of Bangladesh, Dhaka is selected due to the large number (38%) of SMEs that have been established in this area (SME Foundation, 2018). Furthermore, the scope of this study also covers three key points namely (1) environmental practices that are presumed to have been established in textile manufacturing SMEs based on systematic guidelines outlined by the government, (2) green practice activities varies across subsectors in the manufacturing industry due to the diverse product characteristics. If other industry subsectors are taken into consideration, the findings could be different (3) the companies are presumed to execute generic manufacturing or assembly processes.

1.8 Definitions of Key Terms

The definitions of the key terms to be engaged in the study are provided in the order below so that they are easily understood and applied in the study.

1.8.1 Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs)

Depending on the country, SMEs definition considers the size of the enterprise for example the number of employees, annual sales, assets, or any combination of these. However, the criteria set by the government of Bangladesh to define SMEs is based on the type of industry, cost of replacement, and size of workforce as attached in Table 1.1.

1.8.2 Sustainability, Business Sustainability and Environmental Sustainability (ES)

Gaweł (2013) refers sustainability as a broad concept that is applicable in every sphere of human life. Sustainability thrives on three pillars namely economy, society, and environment. These three pillars connote the Triple Bottom Line approach of defining sustainability (Ciegis and Martinkus, 2009). Therefore, sustainability is concerned with ensuring the stability of the organizations, environment, and economies beyond the short-run (Emas, 2015). Business sustainability (BS) has the social, environmental and economic conditions in business management systems and is the bottom line (Elkington, 1997).

ES is a firm's performance concerning its environmental responsibilities (Yang, Hong and Modi, 2011). Morelli (2011) defines ES as "a condition of balance, resilience and interconnectedness that allows human society to satisfy its needs neither by exceeding the capacity of its supporting ecosystems to regenerate the services necessary to meet those needs nor by the action to diminish biological diversity".

ES, which emphasizes on mitigating the deterioration of the natural environment, is one of the prime concerns for scientists, corporations and governments globally (Ardito et al., 2018). Salimzadeh (2016) refers to ES as a dimension of business sustainability. A strategic construct in which businesses are conscious, participate and contribute to activities that assist to protect and preserve the natural environment is called ES. The acts of recycling, waste reduction, energy efficiency, use of environmentally friendly products, reduction of carbon emission and environmental management policy culminate into environmentally sustainable business practices (Jayeola, 2015). The maintenance of ecosystems and global life supporting systems at an appropriate level for the continued supply of nature's services makes up ES (Moldan et al., 2012).

1.8.3 Green Technologies Adoption (GTA)

GTA amounts to the creation and application of products, equipment, and system to conserve the natural environment and resources, which lead to the minimization and reduction of the adverse effects of human activities (Soni, 2016).

GT entails the recycling, water purification, sewage treatment, remediation, flue gas treatment, solid waste management, renewable energy, and solar energy (Omamo, 2012). GT is a wider term to ensure environmentally friendly solutions. GT provides an environmental healing technology that minimizes environmental damages which have been created by the products of conventional technologies. They constitute the technologies, which retain and assure development. The use of GT ensures the environmental healing could make lives comparatively better. GT guarantees the augmentation of firm profitability alongside the reduction of environmental degradation and conservation of natural resources (Werner, Rhodes and Partain, 1998).

GT is technology innovation, which supports the needs of sustainable development of the green environment. Its strength lies with GT inventions, which include the social benefits, such as enhancing the ecological environment, increasing the life benefits of human health quality, and also focuses on the economic benefits.

1.8.4 Stakeholders

Stakeholders constitute "any group or individual who can impact or be impacted by the realization of the objectives of organizations." (Freeman, 2010). Buysse and Verbeke (2003), consider organizations' stakeholders as primary and secondary stakeholders.

1.9 Operational Definition of the Key Terms

1.9.1 Small and medium-sized Enterprises (SMEs)

For this study, the SMEs definition is based on Bangladesh National Industrial Policy, (2016) provided in Table 1.1. According to this policy, companies which have 31-120 employees are considered as Small manufacturing (SMEs) and companies with 121-300 employees are recognized as medium manufacturing SMEs. In the case of service industry, the range varies.

Table 1.1: Definition of SMEs in Bangladesh

Type of Industry	Type of Industry	Replacement Cost BDT	Number of Workers
Small Industry	Manufacturing	7.5 mil to 150 mil	31 to 120
	Service	1 mil to 20 mil	16 to 50
Medium Industry	Manufacturing	150 mil to 500 mil	121 to 300
	Service	20 mil to 300 mil	51 to 120

(Source: National Industrial Policy 2016)

1.9.2 Stakeholders

For this study, stakeholders are directly and indirectly influential parties of textile SMEs. These include Government, Suppliers (Bangladeshi textile companies), Buyers (Foreign retail brands or companies), local community, management personnel and employees of the textile SMEs. In Bangladesh, the major buyers of the textile industries are from Europe, Canada, USA, Japan, Australia, and India. Some important buyers are: Adidas, H&M, Wal-Mart, GAP, Levi's (Brand: Dockler, Denizer, Levi-Strauss), Nike, PVH-Phillips Von Heuson (Brand: CK), Li & Fung, Old Navy, Academy, US Polo, American Eagle, Banana, VF Asia (Brand: Lee, Wrangler), Peri Ellis, Zara, Sains Burry, C&A, Hugo Boss, Esprit, Mango, Puma, European Eagle and many more.

1.9.3 Green Technologies Adoption (GTA)

In this study, GTA is defined as a tool or system which is utilized to minimize the pollution and wastages from the textile companies. It involves, green building that include popular and widely used certification known as LEED in Bangladesh; energy efficient electrical equipment namely LED lightings, inverter technology devices and others; water-efficient devices and equipment such as osmosis tanks etc.; green

chemicals, biodegradable packaging, effluent treatment plant (ETP); organic fibres, eco-friendly vehicle and many others.

1.9.4 Environmentally sustainable practices (ESP)

ESP refer to activities carried out by companies with the aim of reducing the effect of their operations and their products and services on the environment. ESP include using sustainable energy sources, green manufacturing, zero waste policy, recycling of textile waste and left-over materials, paperless policy, Life Cycle Analysis, environmental audits and others.

1.10 Organization of the Thesis

The thesis is organized in five chapters as highlighted below.

Chapter One delivers an overview of the thesis and its structure. In addition, this chapter sets out the objectives of the thesis, problem statement, research objectives and questions, identifying scope of the study, definition of key terms, the assumptions, and the thesis contribution to literature.

Chapter Two covers the literature reviewed on SMEs and sustainability. The chapter describes the underpinning theories and highlights the relationships among stakeholders, GTA, and sustainable green practices. The research framework, and the underlying research hypothesis are also covered.

Chapter Three emphasizes on the research methods which has been adopted for the study. The chapter includes the research process, the population frame, the survey instrument, data collection, unit of analysis, method of statistical analysis, and the ethics in conducting the research.

Chapter Four focuses on testing the hypotheses and presentation of the results of the quantitative research, which include the demographics of respondents, descriptive statistics, measure of goodness of fit, and multivariate regression analyses.

Chapter Five discusses the outcome of the study based on the data analysis. It provides responses to the research questions. The findings are interpreted by comparing, contrasting and relating them to the existing literature. The summary of the thesis is also provided in this chapter. The conclusions are drawn from the findings of the study and the research contributions are also highlighted in this chapter. Finally, the chapter presents the area for future research and implications.

1.11 Summary

In this chapter, the background to the study, research problem, research questions which integrate the research objectives have been discussed. This follows the expected benefits that derive from this research, the scope of study, and the definition of key terms employed for the research. The next chapter entails a brief look at the literature to explore the nature of development of textile SMEs in Bangladesh. The chapter demonstrate the literature review related to concepts, which are included in the theoretical and conceptual framework and hypothesis development. There is also coverage of the underpinning theories engaged for the research and concepts of SMEs and sustainability, stakeholders, GTA and ESP.



REFERENCES

- Aboramadan, M. (2020). The effect of green HRM on employee green behaviors in higher education: the mediating mechanism of green work engagement. *International Journal of Organizational Analysis.*, https://doi.org/10.1108/IJOA-05-2020-2190
- Abubakr, M., Abbas, A. T., Tomaz, I., Soliman, M. S., Luqman, M., & Hegab, H. (2020). Sustainable and Smart Manufacturing: An Integrated Approach. *Sustainability*, *12*(6), 2280.
- Adebambo, H. O., Ashari, H., & Nordin, N. (2014). Antecedents and outcome of Sustainable environmental manufacturing practices. *International Journal of Management and Sustainability*, 3(3), 147-159.
- Aghelie, A. (2017). Exploring drivers and barriers to sustainability green business practices within small medium sized enterprises: primary findings. International Journal of Business and Economic Development (IJBED), 5(1).
- Agirreazkuenaga, L. (2019). Embedding sustainable development goals in education. Teachers' perspective about education for sustainability in the Basque Autonomous Community. *Sustainability*, 11(5), 1496.
- Ahmed, S. S., Akter, T., & Ma, Y. (2018). Green Supply Chain Management (GSCM)
 Performance Implemented by the Textile Industry of Gazipur District,
 Dhaka. Logistics, 2(4), 21.
- Ahmed, U., AlZgool, M. R. H., & Shah, S. M. M. (2019). The impact of green human resource practices on environmental sustainability. *Polish Journal of Management Studies*, 20.
- Ahn, D. G. (2016). Direct metal additive manufacturing processes and their sustainable applications for green technology: A review. *International Journal of Precision Engineering and Manufacturing-Green Technology*, 3(4), 381-395.
- Akter, (2017)http://textilefocus.com/green-next-trend-technology-strategy/
- Alayón, C., Säfsten, K., & Johansson, G. (2017). Conceptual sustainable production principles in practice: do they reflect what companies do?. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 141, 693-701.
- Alcañiz, E. B., Cáceres, R. C., & Pérez, R. C. (2010). Alliances between brands and social causes: The influence of company credibility on social responsibility image. *Journal of business ethics*, 96(2), 169-186.
- Ali, M., Qun, W., & Hossain, M. E. (2019). Revealed Comparative Advantage of Textile and Clothing Industry of Bangladesh in the North American Market. *Journal of Business Management And Economic Research*, 3(1), 28-42.

- Al-Rejal, H. M. E. A., Udin, Z. M., Hassan, M. G., Sharif, K. I. M., Al-Rahmi, W. M., & Al-Kumaim, N. H. (2019, September). Green information technology adoption antecedence: a conceptual framework. In *International Conference* of *Reliable Information and Communication Technology* (pp. 1098-1108). Springer, Cham.
- Alt, E., & Spitzeck, H. (2016). Improving Environmental Performance Through Unit-Level Organizational Citizenship Behaviors For The Environment: A Capability Perspective. *Journal Of Environmental Management*, 182, 48-58. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jenvman.2016.07.034
- Álvarez, M. E. P., Bárcena, M. M., & González, F. A. (2017). On the sustainability of machining processes. Proposal for a unified framework through the triple bottom-line from an understanding review. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 142, 3890-3904.
- Amankwah-Amoah, J., Danso, A., & Adomako, S. (2019). Entrepreneurial orientation, environmental sustainability and new venture performance: Does stakeholder integration matter?. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 28(1), 79-87.
- Ammenberg, J., & Hjelm, O. (2003). Tracing business and environmental effects of environmental management systems—a study of networking small and medium-sized enterprises using a joint environmental management system. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 12(3), 163-174.
- Aragón-Correa, J. A., Hurtado-Torres, N., Sharma, S., & García-Morales, V. J. (2008). Environmental strategy and performance in small firms: A resource-based perspective. *Journal of environmental management*, 86(1), 88-103.
- Ardito, L., Carrillo-Hermosilla, J., del Río, P., & Pontrandolfo, P. (2018). Corporate social responsibility and environmental management invites contributions for a special issue on 'Sustainable innovation: Processes, strategies, and outcomes'. Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management, 25(1), 106-109.
- Ariff, M., & Abubakar, S. Y. (2003). Strengthening entrepreneurship in Malaysia. *Malaysian Institute of Economic Research, Kuala Lumpur*, 1-22.
- Armas-Cruz, Y., Gil-Soto, E., & Oreja-Rodríguez, J. R. (2017). Environmental management in SMEs: organizational and sectoral determinants in the context of an Outermost European Region. *Journal of Business Economics and Management*, 18(5), 935-953.
- Ayuso, S., & Navarrete-Báez, F. E. (2018). How does entrepreneurial and international orientation influence SMEs' commitment to sustainable development? Empirical evidence from Spain and Mexico. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 25(1), 80-94.
- Baah, C., Jin, Z., & Tang, L. (2020). Organizational and regulatory stakeholder pressures friends or foes to green logistics practices and financial performance: investigating corporate reputation as a missing link. *Journal of cleaner production*, 247, 119125.

- Baden, D. A., Harwood, I. A., & Woodward, D. G. (2009). The effect of buyer pressure on suppliers in SMEs to demonstrate CSR practices: an added incentive or counter productive?. *European Management Journal*, 27(6), 429-441.
 - Badulescu, A., Badulescu, D., Saveanu, T., & Hatos, R. (2018). The relationship between firm size and age, and its social responsibility actions—Focus on a developing country (Romania). *Sustainability*, *10*(3), 805.
- Bagozzi, R. P., & Baumgartner, H. (1994). The evaluation of structural equation models and hypothesis testing. Principles of marketing research, 1(10), 386-422.
- Banerjee, S. B., Iyer, E. S., & Kashyap, R. K. (2003). Corporate environmentalism: Antecedents and influence of industry type. *Journal of marketing*, 67(2), 106-122.
- Banihashemi, S., Hosseini, M. R., Golizadeh, H., & Sankaran, S. (2017). Critical success factors (CSFs) for integration of sustainability into construction project management practices in developing countries. *International Journal of Project Management*, 35(6), 1103-1119.
- Basri, W. S. M., & Siam, M. R. (2019). Social media and corporate communication antecedents of SME sustainability performance. *Journal of Economic and Administrative Sciences*.
- Battistella, C., Cagnina, M. R., Cicero, L., & Preghenella, N. (2018). Sustainable business models of SMEs: Challenges in yacht tourism sector. *Sustainability*, *10*(10), 3437.
- BBS (2013) Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics, 2013.
- Becker, T. E., Atinc, G., Breaugh, J. A., Carlson, K. D., Edwards, J. R., & Spector, P. E. (2016). Statistical control in correlational studies: 10 essential recommendations for organizational researchers. *Journal of Organizational Behavior*, 37(2), 157-167.
- Bekele, A. Z., Shigutu, A. D., & Tensay, A. T. (2014). The effect of employees' perception of performance appraisal on their work outcomes. *International Journal of Management and Commerce Innovations*, 2(1), 136-173.
- Bell, E., Bryman, A., & Harley, B. (2018). *Business research methods*. Oxford university press.
- Bellantuono, N., Carbonara, N., & Pontrandolfo, P. (2017). The organization of ecoindustrial parks and their sustainable practices. *Journal of cleaner* production, 161, 362-375.
- Bengtsson, F., & Ågerfalk, P. J. (2011). Information technology as a change actant in sustainability innovation: Insights from Uppsala. *The Journal of Strategic Information Systems*, 20(1), 96-112.

- Benn, S., O'Leary, B., & Abratt, R. (2016). Defining and identifying stakeholders: Views from management and stakeholders. *South African journal of business management*, 47(2), 1-11.
- Benton, W. C., & Maloni, M. (2005). The influence of power driven buyer/seller relationships on supply chain satisfaction. *Journal of Operations Management*, 23(1), 1-22.
- Berrone, P., Fosfuri, A., Gelabert, L., & Gomez-Mejia, L. R. (2013). Necessity as the mother of 'green'inventions: Institutional pressures and environmental innovations. *Strategic Management Journal*, *34*(8), 891-909.
- Bertot, L., Grassart, A., Lagache, T., Nardi, G., Basquin, C., Olivo-Marin, J. C., & Sauvonnet, N. (2018). Quantitative and statistical study of the dynamics of clathrin-dependent and-independent endocytosis reveal a differential role of EndophilinA2. *Cell reports*, 22(6), 1574-1588.
- Bhanot, N., Rao, P. V., & Deshmukh, S. G. (2017). An integrated approach for analysing the enablers and barriers of sustainable manufacturing. *Journal of cleaner production*, 142, 4412-4439.
- Bhattacherjee, A. (2012). Social science research: Principles, methods, and practices.
- Bielicki, J. M., Beetstra, M. A., Kast, J. B., Wang, Y., & Tang, S. (2019). Stakeholder perspectives on sustainability in the food-energy-water nexus. *Frontiers in Environmental Science*, 7, 7.
- Blair, J., Czaja, R. F., & Blair, E. A. (2013). *Designing surveys: A guide to decisions and procedures*. Sage Publications.
- Boffelli, A., Dotti, S., Gaiardelli, P., Carissimi, G., & Resta, B. (2019). Corporate Environmental Management for the Textile Industry: Toward an Empirical Typology. *Sustainability*, 11(23), 6688.
- Boiral, O., & Heras-Saizarbitoria, I. (2020). Sustainability reporting assurance: Creating stakeholder accountability through hyperreality?. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 243, 118596.
- Bollinger, B. (2015). Green technology adoption: An empirical study of the Southern California garment cleaning industry. *Quantitative Marketing and Economics*, 13(4), 319-358.
- Bourgeon, J. M., & Hovsepian, M. (2018). Green Technology Adoption and the Business Cycle. *Available at SSRN* 2952910.
- Bourlakis, M., & Matopoulos, A. (2010). Trends in food supply chain management. In *Delivering performance in food supply chains* (pp. 511-527). Woodhead Publishing.
- Branzei, O., Ursacki-Bryant, T. J., Vertinsky, I., & Zhang, W. (2004). The formation of green strategies in Chinese firms: Matching corporate environmental

- responses and individual principles. *Strategic Management Journal*, 25(11), 1075-1095.
- Brun, A., Caniato, F., Caridi, M., Castelli, C., Miragliotta, G., Ronchi, S., ... & Spina, G. (2008). Logistics and supply chain management in luxury fashion retail: Empirical investigation of Italian firms. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 114(2), 554-570.
- BTMA (2019). https://www.btmadhaka.com/
- Burke, S., & Gaughran, W. F. (2007). Developing a framework for sustainability management in engineering SMEs. *Robotics and Computer-Integrated Manufacturing*, 23(6), 696-703.
- Busi, E., Maranghi, S., Corsi, L., & Basosi, R. (2016). Environmental sustainability evaluation of innovative self-cleaning textiles. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 133, 439-450.
- Buysse, K., & Verbeke, A. (2003). Proactive environmental strategies: A stakeholder management perspective. *Strategic management journal*, 24(5), 453-470.
- Camilleri, M. A. (2019). The SMEs' technology acceptance of digital media for stakeholder engagement. *Journal of Small Business and Enterprise Development*.
- Cantele, S., & Zardini, A. (2020). What drives small and medium enterprises towards sustainability? Role of interactions between pressures, barriers, and benefits. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 27(1), 126-136.
- CDC (2011). Principles of Community Engagement (Second Edition). NIH Publication.
- CDP Center for Disaster Philantrophy, 2020, Disaster Profiles, https://disasterphilanthropy.org/our-approach/disasters/
- Chakraborty, S. (2016). A Detailed Study on Environmental Sustainability in Knit Composite Industries of Bangladesh. *American Journal of Environmental Protection*, 5(5), 121-127.
- Chan, F. T., Chong, A. Y. L., & Zhou, L. (2012). An empirical investigation of factors affecting e-collaboration diffusion in SMEs. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 138(2), 329-344.
- Chassé, S., & Boiral, O. (2017). Legitimizing corporate (un) sustainability: A case study of passive SMEs. *Organization & Environment*, 30(4), 324-345.
- Chege, S. M., & Wang, D. (2020). The influence of technology innovation on SME performance through environmental sustainability practices in Kenya. *Technology in Society*, 60, 101210.

- Chen, S., Chen, H. H., Zhang, K. Q., & Xu, X. L. (2018). A comprehensive theoretical framework for examining learning effects in green and conventionally managed hotels. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 174, 1392-1399.
- Chen, Y., Wang, K., Lin, Y., Shi, W., Song, Y., & He, X. (2015). Balancing green and grain trade. *Nature Geoscience*, 8(10), 739-741.
- Chin W. W. (1998). The partial least squares approach to structural equation modelling in Modern Methods for Business Research, G. A. Marcoulides, Ed., pp. 295–336, Erlbaum, Mahwah, NJ, USA, 1998.
- Chin, K. Y., Zakaria, Z., & Keong, C. C. (2020). The Impact of Managerial Characteristics on Capital Structure in Malaysian Manufacturing SMEs. *International Journal of Banking and Finance*, 15(1), 21-37.
- Chowdhury, M. S. A., Azam, M. K. G., & Islam, S. (2013). Problems and prospects of SME financing in Bangladesh. *Asian Business Review*, 2(2), 109-116.
- Christmann, P. (2004). Multinational companies and the natural environment: Determinants of global environmental policy. *Academy of Management Journal*, 47(5), 747-760.
- Churchill, G.A. (1979). A Paradigm for Developing Better Measures of Marketing Constructs, Journal of Marketing Research, no. 16, pp. 64-73.
- Churchill, G.A.J. (1995). Marketing Research Methodological Foundations, 7th ed., the Dryden Press, Fort Worth, TX.
- Ciegis, R., Ramanauskiene, J., & Martinkus, B. (2009). The concept of sustainable development and its use for sustainability scenarios. *Engineering economics*, 62(2).
- Cordeiro, G.M., Edwin, M.M. Ortega and Nadarajah, S. (2010). The Kumaraswamy Weibull distribution with application to failure data. J. Franklin Inst., 347, 1399-1429.
- Costa, A. S., Govindan, K., & Figueira, J. R. (2018). Supplier classification in emerging economies using the ELECTRE TRI-nC method: A case study considering sustainability aspects. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 201, 925-947.
- Creswell, J. W., & Clark, V. L. P. (2017). *Designing and conducting mixed methods research*. Sage publications.
- Cronbach, L.J. (1951). "Coefficient Alpha and the Internal Structure of Tests", Psychometrika, vol. 16, no. September, pp. 297-334.
- Curkovic, S., & Sroufe, R. (2016). A literature review and taxonomy of environmentally responsible manufacturing. *American Journal of Industrial and Business Management*, 6(03), 323.
- da Silva, P. C., de Oliveira Neto, G. C., Correia, J. M. F., & Tucci, H. N. P. (2020). Evaluation of economic, environmental and operational performance of the

- adoption of cleaner production: Survey in large textile industries. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 278, 123855.
- Danso, A., Adomako, S., Lartey, T., Amankwah-Amoah, J., & Owusu-Yirenkyi, D. (2019). Stakeholder integration, environmental sustainability orientation and financial performance. *Journal of business research*.
- Das, M., & Shafiquzzaman, M. (2020). The Case Studies of Bangladesh Ready Made Garments: Supplier Sustainable Practices for International Markets.
- Das, S., Lee, S. H., Kumar, P., Kim, K. H., Lee, S. S., & Bhattacharya, S. S. (2019). Solid waste management: Scope and the challenge of sustainability. *Journal of cleaner production*, 228, 658-678.
 - Dawal, S. Z. M., Tahriri, F., Jen, Y. H., Case, K., Tho, N. H., Zuhdi, A., & Sakundarini, N. (2015). Empirical evidence of AMT practices and sustainable environmental initiatives in malaysian automotive SMEs. *International Journal of Precision Engineering and Manufacturing*, 16(6), 1195-1203.
- de Abreu, M. C. S. (2015). Perspectives, drivers, and a roadmap for corporate social responsibility in the textile and clothing industry. In *Roadmap to sustainable textiles and clothing* (pp. 1-21). Springer, Singapore.
- de Bakker, F. G., Rasche, A., & Ponte, S. (2019). Multi-stakeholder initiatives on sustainability: A cross-disciplinary review and research agenda for business ethics. *Business Ethics Quarterly*, 29(3), 343-383.
- de Burgos-Jiménez, J., Vázquez-Brust, D., Plaza-Úbeda, J. A., & Dijkshoorn, J. (2013). Environmental protection and financial performance: An empirical analysis in Wales. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*.
- De Kok, J., Deijl, C., & Veldhuis-Van Essen, C. (2013). Is Small Still Beautiful?: Literature Review of Recent Empirical Evidence on the Contribution of SMEs to Employment Creation. Deutsche Gesellschaft für Internationale Zusammenarbeit (GIZ).
- De Marchi, V. (2012). Environmental innovation and R&D cooperation: Empirical evidence from Spanish manufacturing firms. *Research policy*, 41(3), 614-623.
- de Oliveira Neto, G. C., Correia, J. M. F., Silva, P. C., de Oliveira Sanches, A. G., & Lucato, W. C. (2019). Cleaner Production in the textile industry and its relationship to sustainable development goals. *Journal of cleaner production*, 228, 1514-1525.
- Deif, A. M. (2011). A system model for green manufacturing. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 19(14), 1553-1559.
- del Brío González, J., & Barba-Sánchez, V. (2020). The Mediating Effect of Environmental Proactivity on the Influence of Stakeholder Pressure and Environmental Strategy of Wineries in Spain. *International Journal of Environmental Research*, 1-13.

- Del Brìo, J. A., & Junquera, B. (2003). A review of the literature on environmental innovation management in SMEs: implications for public policies. *Technovation*, 23(12), 939-948.
- Delai, I., & Takahashi, S. (2013). Corporate sustainability in emerging markets: insights from the practices reported by the Brazilian retailers. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 47, 211-221.
- Demuijnck, G., & Ngnodjom, H. (2013). Responsibility and informal CSR in formal Cameroonian SMEs. *Journal of business ethics*, 112(4), 653-665.
- Dey, P. K., Petridis, N. E., Petridis, K., Malesios, C., Nixon, J. D., & Ghosh, S. K. (2018). Environmental management and corporate social responsibility practices of small and medium-sized enterprises. *Journal of cleaner production*, 195, 687-702.
- Dixon-Fowler, H. R., Slater, D. J., Johnson, J. L., Ellstrand, A. E., & Romi, A. M. (2013). Beyond "does it pay to be green?" A meta-analysis of moderators of the CEP-CFP relationship. *Journal of business ethics*, 112(2), 353-366.
- Domingues, A. R., Lozano, R., Ceulemans, K., & Ramos, T. B. (2017). Sustainability reporting in public sector organisations: Exploring the relation between the reporting process and organisational change management for sustainability. *Journal of environmental management*, 192, 292-301.
- Dou, Y., Zhu, Q., & Sarkis, J. (2014). Evaluating green supplier development programs with a grey-analytical network process-based methodology. *European Journal of Operational Research*, 233(2), 420-431.
- Dubey, R., Gunasekaran, A., & Papadopoulos, T. (2017). Green supply chain management: theoretical framework and further research directions. *Benchmarking: An International Journal*.
- Dumont, J. Shen, J. Deng, X. (2018). Effects of green HRM practices on employee workplace green behavior: The role of psychological green climate and green employee values. *Human Resource Management*, 56 (4), 613-627.
- Dutta, R., Das, A., & Aryal, J. (2016). Big data integration shows Australian bush-fire frequency is increasing significantly. *Royal Society open science*, 3(2), 150241.
- Dyllick, T., & Rost, Z. (2017). Towards true product sustainability. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 162, 346-360.
- Económico, C. (2016). Social de las Naciones Unidas (2002). Examen de los informes presentados por los Estados partes en virtud de los artículos, 16.
- EEA European Environment Agency, 2019, Healthy environment, healthy lives: Healthy environment, healthy lives: how the environment influences health and well-being in Europe, https://www.eea.europa.eu/publications/healthy-environment-healthy-lives

- Elkington, J. (1997). The triple bottom line. *Environmental management: Readings and cases*, 2.
- Emas, R. (2015). The concept of sustainable development: definition and defining principles. *Brief for GSDR*, 2015.
- Etzioni, A. (1996). The responsive community: A communitarian perspective. *American Sociological Review*, 1-11.
- Europe, C. S. R. (2013). Enterprise 2020 Strategy. *The European network for corporate social responsibility. Brussels*.
- Evans, N., & Sawyer, J. (2010). CSR and stakeholders of small businesses in regional South Australia. *Social Responsibility Journal*.
- Farooq, O., Farooq, M., & Reynaud, E. (2019). Does Employees' Participation in Decision Making Increase the level of Corporate Social and Environmental Sustainability? An Investigation in South Asia. *Sustainability*, 11(2), 511.
- Fassin, Y. (2009). The stakeholder model refined. *Journal of business ethics*, 84(1), 113-135.
- Fatoki, O. (2018). The impact of entrepreneurial resilience on the success of small and medium enterprises in South Africa. *Sustainability*, 10(7), 2527.
- Ferreira, J. J., Fernandes, C. I., & Ferreira, F. A. (2020). Technology transfer, climate change mitigation, and environmental patent impact on sustainability and economic growth: A comparison of European countries. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 150, 119770.
- Flick, U. (2015). Introducing research methodology: A beginner's guide to doing a research project. Sage.
- Foo, M. Y., Kanapathy, K., Zailani, S., & Shaharudin, M. R. (2019). Green purchasing capabilities, practices and institutional pressure. *Management of Environmental Quality: An International Journal*.
- Forés, B. (2019). Beyond gathering the 'low-hanging fruit' of green technology for improved environmental performance: an empirical examination of the moderating effects of proactive environmental management and business strategies. *Sustainability*, 11(22), 6299.
- Fornell C. and D. F. Larcker (1981). "Evaluating structural equation models with unobservable variables and measurement error," Journal of Marketing Research, vol.18, no.1, pp. 39–50, 1981.
- Foroozanfar, M., Sepasgozar, S. M. E., & Arbabi, H. (2017). Modelling Green Technology Adoption Based on Sustainable Construction Practices. *EPiC Series in Education Science*, *1*, 305-315.

- Fox, R. J., Crask, M. R., & Kim, J. (1989). Mail survey response rate: A metaanalysis of selected techniques for inducing response. *Public Opinion Quarterly*, 52(4), 467-491.
- Fraj-Andrés, E., Martinez-Salinas, E., & Matute-Vallejo, J. (2009). A multidimensional approach to the influence of environmental marketing and orientation on the firm's organizational performance. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 88(2), 263.
- Freeman, R. E. (1984). Strategic management: A stakeholder theory. *Journal of Management Studies*, 39(1), 1-21.
- French, J. R., Raven, B., & Cartwright, D. (1959). The bases of social power. *Classics of organization theory*, 7, 311-320.
- Freudenreich, B., Lüdeke-Freund, F., & Schaltegger, S. (2020). A stakeholder theory perspective on business models: Value creation for sustainability. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 166(1), 3-18.
- Frondel, M., & Schmidt, C. M. (2003). Rejecting capital–skill complementarity at all costs. *Economics Letters*, 80(1), 15-21.
- Frondel, M., Horbach, J., & Rennings, K. (2007). End-of-pipe or cleaner production? An empirical comparison of environmental innovation decisions across OECD countries. *Business strategy and the environment*, 16(8), 571-584.
- Gadenne, D. L., Kennedy, J., & McKeiver, C. (2009). An empirical study of environmental awareness and practices in SMEs. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 84(1), 45-63.
- Gandhi, N. S., Thanki, S. J., & Thakkar, J. J. (2018). Ranking of drivers for integrated lean-green manufacturing for Indian manufacturing SMEs. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 171, 675-689.
- Gardetti, M. Á., & Muthu, S. S. (Eds.). (2015). *Handbook of sustainable luxury textiles and fashion* (Vol. 1). Singapore: Springer.
- Gavronski, I., Klassen, R. D., Vachon, S., & do Nascimento, L. F. M. (2011). A resource-based view of green supply management. *Transportation Research Part E: Logistics and Transportation Review*, 47(6), 872-885.
- Gawel, E., & Purkus, A. (2013). Promoting the market and system integration of renewable energies through premium schemes—A case study of the German market premium. *Energy Policy*, *61*, 599-609.
- Gefen, Straub, & Boudreau. (2000). Structural equation modelling and regression: Guidelines for research practice. Communications of the association for information systems, 4(1), 7.
- Geisser, S. (1975). The predictive sample reuse method with applications. Journal of the American statistical Association, 70(350), 320-328.

- Ghassim, B., & Bogers, M. (2019). Linking stakeholder engagement to profitability through sustainability-oriented innovation: A quantitative study of the minerals industry. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 224, 905-919.
- Ghassim, B., & Foss, L. (2020). How Do Leaders Embrace Stakeholder Engagement for Sustainability-Oriented Innovation?. In *New Leadership in Strategy and Communication* (pp. 63-80). Springer, Cham.
- Ghazilla, R. A. R., Sakundarini, N., Abdul-Rashid, S. H., Ayub, N. S., Olugu, E. U., & Musa, S. N. (2015). Drivers and barriers analysis for green manufacturing practices in Malaysian SMEs: a preliminary findings. *Procedia Cirp*, 26, 658-663.
- Gilbert, D. U., & Rasche, A. (2008). Opportunities and problems of standardized ethics initiatives—a stakeholder theory perspective. *Journal of business ethics*, 82(3), 755-773.
- Girod, B., Stucki, T., & Woerter, M. (2017). How do policies for efficient energy use in the household sector induce energy-efficiency innovation? An evaluation of European countries. *Energy Policy*, 103, 223-237.
- González-Benito, J., & González-Benito, Ó. (2006). A review of determinant factors of environmental proactivity. *Business Strategy and the environment*, 15(2), 87-102.
- González-Zapatero, C., González-Benito, J., Lannelongue, G., & Ferreira, L. M. (2020). Using fit perspectives to explain supply chain risk management efficacy. *International Journal of Production Research*, 1-12.
- Gotz O., K. Liehr-Gobbers, and M. Krafft (2010). "Evaluation of structural equation models using the Partial Least Squares (PLS) approach," in Handbook of Partial Least Squares, V.E. Vinzi, W. W. Chin, J. Henseler, and H. Wang, Eds., Springer Handbooks of Computational Statistics, pp. 47–82, 2010.
- Gouda, S. K., & Saranga, H. (2020). Pressure or premium: what works best where? Antecedents and outcomes of sustainable manufacturing practices. *International Journal of Production Research*, 1-17.
- Govindan, K., Azevedo, S. G., Carvalho, H., & Cruz-Machado, V. (2015). Lean, green and resilient practices influence on supply chain performance: interpretive structural modeling approach. *International Journal of Environmental Science and Technology*, 12(1), 15-34.
- Graziani, F., Gennai, S., Solini, A., & Petrini, M. (2018). A systematic review and metaanalysis of epidemiologic observational evidence on the effect of periodontitis on diabetes An update of the EFP-AAP review. *Journal of Clinical Periodontology*, 45(2), 167-187.
- Guarnieri, P., & Trojan, F. (2019). Decision making on supplier selection based on social, ethical, and environmental criteria: A study in the textile industry. *Resources, Conservation and Recycling*, *141*, 347-361.

- Gupta, H., & Barua, M. K. (2016). Identifying enablers of technological innovation for Indian MSMEs using best–worst multi criteria decision making method. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 107, 69-79.
- Haenlein, & Kaplan. (2004). A beginner's guide to partial least squares analysis. Understanding statistics, 3(4), 283-297.
- Haider, S., Fatima, F., Bakhsh, K., & Ahmed, M. (2019). Effect of intervention on employees' intentions to use environmentally sustainable work practices: A field experiment. *Journal of environmental management*, 248, 109334.
- Haimes Y (2006) On the definition of vulnerabilities in measuring risks to infrastructures. Risk Anal Off Publ Soc Risk Anal, 26(2):293–296
- Hair (2010). Multivariate data analysis: Pearson College Division. Seventh Edition. John Wiley & Sons.
- Hair, Black, Babin, Anderson & Tatham. (2006). Multivariate data analysis (Vol. 6): Upper Saddle River, NJ: Pearson Prentice Hall.
- Hair, J. F., Ringle, C. M., & Sarstedt, M. (2013). Partial least squares structural equation modeling: Rigorous applications, better results and higher acceptance. Long range planning, 46(1-2), 1-12.
- Halila, F. (2007). Networks as a means of supporting the adoption of organizational innovations in SMEs: the case of Environmental Management Systems (EMSs) based on ISO 14001. Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management, 14(3), 167-181.
- Harmon, H. L., & Schafft, K. (2009). Rural school leadership for collaborative community development. The Rural Educator, 30 (3), 4-9.
- Hart, O. (1995). Corporate governance: some theory and implications. *The economic journal*, 105(430), 678-689.
- Hasan, M. N. (2016). Measuring and understanding the engagement of Bangladeshi SMEs with sustainable and socially responsible business practices: an ISO 26000 perspective. *Social Responsibility Journal*.
- Hasan, M. N., Anastasiadis, S., & Spence, L. J. (2020). Polluting SMEs and the construction of their environmental behaviours: Evidence from Bangladesh. *Business Strategy & Development*.
- HBR (2020). https://hbr.org/2020/03/a-more-sustainable-supply-chain
- Helmig, B., Spraul, K., & Ingenhoff, D. (2016). Under positive pressure: How stakeholder pressure affects corporate social responsibility implementation. *Business & Society*, 55(2), 151-187.
- Henseler, J., Christian, M., Ringle & Rudolf, R., Sinkovics (2009). "the use of partial least squares path modeling in international marketing", New Challenges to

- International Marketing Advances in International Marketing, vol. 20, pp. 277-319.
- Henseler, J., Ringle, C. M., & Sarstedt, M. (2015). A new criterion for assessing discriminant validity in variance-based structural equation modeling. Journal of the academy of marketing science, 43(1), 115-135.
- Henseler, Ringle, & Sinkovics. (2009). The use of partial least squares path modelling in international marketing. Advances in international marketing, 20(1), 277-319.
- Hillary, R. (2004). Environmental management systems and the smaller enterprise. *Journal of cleaner production*, 12(6), 561-569.
- Hirsig, N., Rogovsky, N., & Elkin, M. (2014). Enterprise sustainability and HRM in small and medium-sized enterprises. In *Sustainability and Human Resource Management* (pp. 127-152). Springer, Berlin, Heidelberg.
- Hoogendoorn, B., Guerra, D., & van der Zwan, P. (2015). What drives environmental practices of SMEs?. *Small Business Economics*, 44(4), 759-781.
- Hossain, K. (2020). Sustainable system transition of Bangladeshi textile industry.
- Hossain, L., Sarker, S. K., & Khan, M. S. (2018). Evaluation of present and future wastewater impacts of textile dyeing industries in Bangladesh. *Environmental Development*, 26, 23-33.
- Hossain, M. I., San, O. T., Ling, S. M., & Said, R. M. (2020). The Role of Environmental Awareness and Green Technological Usage to Foster Sustainable Green Practices in Bangladeshi Manufacturing SMEs. International journal of advance science and technology. Vol. 29, No. 7s, (2020), pp. 3115-3124.
- Hottenrott, H., Rexhäuser, S., & Veugelers, R. (2016). Organisational change and the productivity effects of green technology adoption. Resource and Energy Economics, 43, 172-194.
- House of Commens (2017). Retrieved from:
- Hsu, C. H., Chang, A. Y., & Luo, W. (2017). Identifying key performance factors for sustainability development of SMEs-integrating QFD and fuzzy MADM methods. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, *161*, 629-645.
- Hwang, B. N., Huang, C. Y., & Wu, C. H. (2016). A TOE approach to establish a green supply chain adoption decision model in the semiconductor industry. *Sustainability*, 8(2), 168.
- I am renew, (2020). https://www.iamrenew.com/ [Accessed on: 10.10.2020]
- Ibrahim, I., Sundram, V. P. K., Omar, E. N., Yusoff, N., & Amer, A. (2019). The determinant factors of green practices adoption for logistics companies in

- Malaysia. a case study of PKT Logistics Group Sdn. Bhd. *Journal of Emerging Economies and Islamic Research*, 7(1), 14-23.
- Ideas for leaders (n,d). https://www.ideasforleaders.com/ideas/collaborate-with-suppliers-to-ensure-green-practices-in-the-supply-chain
- Iravani, A., Akbari, M. H., & Zohoori, M. (2017). Advantages and disadvantages of green technology; goals, challenges and strengths. *Int J Sci Eng Appl*, 6(9), 272-284.
- Jainudin, N. A., Jugah, I., Ali, A. N. A., & Tawie, R. (2017, August). The acceptance of green technology: A case study in Sabah Development Corridor. In *AIP Conference Proceedings* (Vol. 1875, No. 1, p. 030001). AIP Publishing LLC.
- Jajja, M. S. S., Asif, M., Montabon, F. L., & Chatha, K. A. (2019). The influence of institutional pressures and organization culture on Supplier Social Compliance Management Systems. *International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics Management*.
- Jakhar, S. K., Bhattacharya, A., Rathore, H., & Mangla, S. K. (2020). Stakeholder pressure for sustainability: Can 'innovative capabilities' explain the idiosyncratic response in the manufacturing firms?. *Business Strategy and the Environment*.
- Jamali, D. R., El Dirani, A. M., & Harwood, I. A. (2015). Exploring human resource management roles in corporate social responsibility: The CSR-HRM cocreation model. *Business Ethics: A European Review*, 24(2), 125-143.
- Jang, Y. J. (2020). The role of stakeholder engagement in environmental sustainability: A moderation analysis of chain affiliation. *Journal of Hospitality & Tourism Research*, 1096348020936348.
- Jansson, J., Nilsson, J., Modig, F., & Hed Vall, G. (2017). Commitment to sustainability in small and medium-sized enterprises: The influence of strategic orientations and management values. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 26(1), 69-83.
- Jayeola, O. (2015). The impact of environmental sustainability practice on the financial performance of SMEs: A study of some selected SMEs in Sussex. *International Journal of Business Management and Economic Research*, 6(4), 214-230.
- Jenkins, H. (2004). Game design as narrative. Computer, 44(53), 118-130.
- Jia, F., Yin, S., Chen, L., & Chen, X. (2020). Circular economy in textile and apparel industry: A systematic literature review. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 120728.
- Jnr, B. A., Majid, M. A., & Romli, A. (2019). Green information technology adoption towards a sustainability policy agenda for government-based institutions. *Journal of Science and Technology Policy Management*.

- Johnson, M. P. (2015). Sustainability management and small and medium-sized enterprises: Managers' awareness and implementation of innovative tools. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 22(5), 271-285.
- Johnston, L. D., & Williamson, S. (2008). Sources and Techniques Used in the Construction of Annual GDP, 1790–Present. *Measuring Worth. com*.
- Jyoti, K. (2019). Green HRM–People Management Commitment to Environmental Sustainability. In *Proceedings of 10th International Conference on Digital Strategies for Organizational Success*.
- Kalyar, M. N., Shoukat, A., & Shafique, I. (2019). Enhancing firms' environmental performance and financial performance through green supply chain management practices and institutional pressures. Sustainability Accounting, Management and Policy Journal.
- Kassinis, G., & Vafeas, N. (2006). Stakeholder pressures and environmental performance. *Academy of Management Journal*, 49(1), 145-159.
- Kaur, A., & Lodhia, S. K. (2019). Key issues and challenges in stakeholder engagement in sustainability reporting. *Pacific Accounting Review*.
- Kautonen, T., Schillebeeckx, S. J., Gartner, J., Hakala, H., Salmela-Aro, K., & Snellman, K. (2020). The dark side of sustainability orientation for SME performance. *Journal of Business Venturing Insights*, 14, e00198.
- Keijzers, G. (2002). The transition to the sustainable enterprise. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 10(4), 349-359.
- Kerr, I. R. (2006). Leadership strategies for sustainable SME operation. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 15(1), 30-39.
- Khan, M. M. R., & Islam, M. M. (2015). Materials and manufacturing environmental sustainability evaluation of apparel product: knitted T-shirt case study. *Textiles and Clothing Sustainability*, 1(1), 8.
- Khattak, A., & Park, Y. E. (2018). Environmental upgrading of an apparel firm in Bangladesh: a case study of VIYELLATEX. *Emerald Emerging Markets Case Studies*.
- Khosravi, F., & Izbirak, G. (2019). A stakeholder perspective of social sustainability measurement in healthcare supply chain management. *Sustainable Cities and Society*, *50*, 101681.
- Kiron, D., Kruschwitz, N., Reeves, M., & Goh, E. (2013). The benefits of sustainability-driven innovation. *MIT Sloan Management Review*, *54*(2), 69.
- Kirubakaran, V., Sivaramakrishnan, V., Nalini, R., Sekar, T., Premalatha, M., & Subramanian, P. (2009). A review on gasification of biomass. *Renewable and Sustainable Energy Reviews*, 13(1), 179-186.

- Klassen, R. D., & Whybark, D. C. (1999). The impact of environmental technologies on manufacturing performance. *Academy of Management journal*, 42(6), 599-615.
- Knight, H., Megicks, P., Agarwal, S., & Leenders, M. A. A. M. (2019). Firm resources and the development of environmental sustainability among small and medium-sized enterprises: Evidence from the Australian wine industry. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 28(1), 25-39.
- Koirala, S. (2019). SMEs: Key drivers of green and inclusive growth, *OECD Green Growth Papers*, No. 2019/03, OECD Publishing, Paris, https://doi.org/10.1787/8a51fc0c-en.
- La Rovere, R. L. (1998). Small and medium-sized enterprises and IT diffusion policies in Europe. *Small Business Economics*, 11(1), 1-9.
- Lamming, R., & Hampson, J. (1996). The environment as a supply chain management issue. *British journal of Management*, 7, S45-S62.
- Lauckner, H., Paterson, M., & Krupa, T. (2012). Using constructivist case study methodology to understand community development processes: proposed methodological questions to guide the research process. *Qualitative Report*, 17, 25.
- Lauring, J., & Thomsen, C. (2009). Collective ideals and practices in sustainable development: managing corporate identity. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 16(1), 38-47.
- Lawrence, S. R., Collins, E., Pavlovich, K., & Arunachalam, M. (2006). Sustainability practices of SMEs: the case of NZ. Business strategy and the environment, 15(4), 242-257.
- Le Van, Q., Viet Nguyen, T., & Nguyen, M. H. (2019). Sustainable development and environmental policy: The engagement of stakeholders in green products in Vietnam. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 28(5), 675-687.
- Lee, K. E. (2017). Environmental sustainability in the textile industry. In *Sustainability* in the *Textile Industry* (pp. 17-55). Springer, Singapore.
- Lee, S. Y. (2008). Drivers for the participation of small and medium-sized suppliers in green supply chain initiatives. *Supply chain management: an international journal*.
- Li, T., Lü, Y., Fu, B., Comber, A. J., Harris, P., & Wu, L. (2017). Gauging policy-driven large-scale vegetation restoration programmes under a changing environment: Their effectiveness and socio-economic relationships. *Science of the Total Environment*, 607, 911-919.
- Ling, T. C., & Sultana, N. (2015). Corporate social responsibility: what motivates management to disclose?. *Social Responsibility Journal*.

- Liu, Y., Zhu, Q., & Seuring, S. (2020). New technologies in operations and supply chains: Implications for sustainability. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 229, 107889.
- Loorbach, D., & Wijsman, K. (2013). Business transition management: exploring a new role for business in sustainability transitions. *Journal of cleaner production*, 45, 20-28.
- Lucas, K. (Ed.). (2004). Running on empty: Transport, social exclusion and environmental justice. Policy Press.
- MacDonald, A., Clarke, A., Huang, L., & Seitanidi, M. (2019). Partner strategic capabilities for capturing value from sustainability-focused multi-stakeholder partnerships. *Sustainability*, 11(3), 557.
- Madan, N. (2020). A Review of Access to Finance by Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises and Digital Financial Services in Selected Asia-Pacific Least Developed Countries. MPFD Working Papers WP/20/03, ESCAP, UN.
- Madsen, H., & Ulhøi, J. P. (2015). Stakeholder pressures, environmental impact and managerial initiatives of SMEs: A longitudinal study. *The Journal of Transdisciplinary Environmental Studies*, 14(1), 13.
- Maon, F., Lindgreen, A., & Swaen, V. (2009). Designing and implementing corporate social responsibility: An integrative framework grounded in theory and practice. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 87(1), 71-89.
- Marshal, C. R. GB (1999) Designing Qualitative Research.
- Marshall, D., & McCarthy, L. (2013). Impact of customer sustainability pressure on the relationship between social supply chain sustainability practices and outcomes. In *24th POMS Annual Conference*, *Denver*, *May* (pp. 3-6).
- Masud, M. H., Akram, W., Ahmed, A., Ananno, A. A., Mourshed, M., Hasan, M., & Joardder, M. U. H. (2019). Towards the effective E-waste management in Bangladesh: a review. *Environmental Science and Pollution Research*, 26(2), 1250-1276.
- Matthews, R. L., Tse, Y. K., O'Meara Wallis, M., & Marzec, P. E. (2019). A stakeholder perspective on process improvement behaviours: delivering the triple bottom line in SMEs. *Production Planning & Control*, 30(5-6), 437-447.
- McAdam, R., McConvery, T., & Armstrong, G. (2004). Barriers to innovation within small firms in a peripheral location. *International Journal of Entrepreneurial Behavior & Research*.
- McArdle, K., & Mansfield, S. (2013). Developing a discourse of the postmodern community development professional. *Discourse: Studies in the Cultural Politics of Education*, 34(1), 107-117.

- Micceri, T. (1989). The unicorn, the normal curve, and other improbable creatures. The unicorn, the normal curve, and other improbable creatures. Psychological Bulletin, 105(1), 156.
- Michailova, S., McCarthy, D. J., Puffer, S. M., Chadee, D., & Roxas, B. (2013). Institutional environment, innovation capacity and firm performance in Russia. *Critical perspectives on international business*.
- Mirjalili, M., & Zohoori, S. (2016). Review for application of electrospinning and electrospun nanofibers technology in textile industry. *Journal of Nanostructure in Chemistry*, 6(3), 207-213.
- Mitchell, S., O'Dowd, P., & Dimache, A. (2020). Manufacturing SMEs doing it for themselves: developing, testing and piloting an online sustainability and ecoinnovation toolkit for SMEs. *International Journal of Sustainable Engineering*, 13(3), 159-170.
- Mithas, S., Khuntia, J., & Roy, P. K. (2010). Green information technology, energy efficiency, and profits: Evidence from an emerging economy.
- Moktadir, M. A., Rahman, T., Rahman, M. H., Ali, S. M., & Paul, S. K. (2018). Drivers to sustainable manufacturing practices and circular economy: A perspective of leather industries in Bangladesh. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 174, 1366-1380.
- Moldan, B., Janoušková, S., & Hák, T. (2012). How to understand and measure environmental sustainability: Indicators and targets. *Ecological Indicators*, 17, 4-13.
- Montiel, I., & Delgado-Ceballos, J. (2014). Defining and measuring corporate sustainability: Are we there yet?. *Organization & Environment*, 27(2), 113-139.
- Morelli, J. (2011). Environmental sustainability: A definition for environmental professionals. *Journal of environmental sustainability*, *1*(1), 2.
- Moss, J., Lambert, C. G., & Rennie, A. E. (2008). SME application of LCA-based carbon footprints. *International Journal of Sustainable Engineering*, 1(2), 132-141.
- Musa, H., & Chinniah, M. (2015). Malaysian SMEs Development, Future and Challenges on Going Green: 6th International Research Symposium in Service Management, IRSSM-6. *UiTM Sarawak, Malaysia*, 11-15.
- Musa, H., & Chinniah, M. (2016). Malaysian SMEs development: future and challenges on going green. *Procedia-Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 224(2016), 254-62.
- Muthu, S. S. (2020). Assessing the environmental impact of textiles and the clothing supply chain. Woodhead publishing.
- National Industrial Policy (2016). http://projectsprofile.com/info/trade policy one.html

- Nguyen, M. H., Phan, A. C., & Matsui, Y. (2018). Contribution of quality management practices to sustainability performance of Vietnamese firms. *Sustainability*, *10*(2), 375.
- Nilashi, M., Rupani, P. F., Rupani, M. M., Kamyab, H., Shao, W., Ahmadi, H., ... & Aljojo, N. (2019). Measuring sustainability through ecological sustainability and human sustainability: A machine learning approach. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 240, 118162.
- Nooi, E. (2008). On the First Figure of Conjunctive Syllogism Abu Sa'id's Opinions And Avicenna's Responses.
- Nunnally, J. C., & Bernstein, I. H. (1994). Psychological theory. New York, NY: MacGraw-Hill, 131-147.
- Ogiemwonyi, O., Harun, A. B., Alam, M. N., Karim, A. M., Tabash, M. I., Hossain, M. I., ... & Ojuolape, M. A. (2020). Green product as a means of expressing green behaviour: A cross-cultural empirical evidence from Malaysia and Nigeria. *Environmental Technology & Innovation*, 20, 101055.
- Ögmundarson, Ó., Herrgård, M. J., Forster, J., Hauschild, M. Z., & Fantke, P. (2020). Addressing environmental sustainability of biochemicals. *Nature Sustainability*, 1-8.
- Oliveira, T., & Martins, M. F. (2011). Literature review of information technology adoption models at firm level. *Electronic Journal of Information Systems Evaluation*, 14(1), 110.
- Omamo, J. O. (2012). Factors affecting adoption of green technology by firms in Kenya (Doctoral dissertation, University of Nairobi, Kenya).
- Pagnussatt, D., Petrini, M., Silveira, L. M. D., & Santos, A. C. M. Z. D. (2018). Who they are, what they do, and how they interact: understanding stakeholders in Small Hydropower Plants. *Gestão & Produção*, 25(4), 888-900.
- Paillé, P., & Meija-Morelos, J. H. (2019). Organisational support is not always enough to encourage employee environmental performance. The moderating role of exchange ideology. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 220, 1061-1070.
- Pakdeechoho, N., & Sukhotu, V. (2018). Sustainable supply chain collaboration: incentives in emerging economies. *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*.
- Pal, R., Shen, B., & Sandberg, E. (2019). Circular fashion supply chain management: Exploring impediments and prescribing future research agenda. *Journal of Fashion Marketing and Management: An International Journal*.
- Parmar, B. L., Freeman, R. E., Harrison, J. S., Wicks, A. C., Purnell, L., & De Colle, S. (2010). Stakeholder theory: The state of the art. *Academy of Management Annals*, 4(1), 403-445.

- Pattnaik, P., & Dangayach, G. S. (2019). Sustainability of Wastewater Management In Textile Sectors: A Conceptual Framework. *Environmental Engineering & Management Journal (EEMJ)*, 18(9).
- Patwary, S. U. (2020). Environmental sustainability. Innovations.
- Penrose, E., & Penrose, E. T. (2009). *The Theory of the Growth of the Firm*. Oxford university press.
- Peters, G. M., Sandin, G., & Spak, B. (2019). Environmental prospects for mixed textile recycling in Sweden. *ACS Sustainable Chemistry & Engineering*, 7(13), 11682-11690.
 - Petrini, M., & Pozzebon, M. (2009). Managing sustainability with the support of business intelligence: Integrating socio-environmental indicators and organisational context. *The Journal of Strategic Information Systems*, 18(4), 178-191.
- Pillai, V. K., & Gupta, R. (2015). Sustainability and social work. *International Journal of Sustainable Society*, 7(2), 140-150.
- Piyathanavong, V., Garza-Reyes, J. A., Kumar, V., Maldonado-Guzmán, G., & Mangla, S. K. (2019). The adoption of operational environmental sustainability approaches in the Thai manufacturing sector. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 220, 507-528.
- Porter, M. E., & Van der Linde, C. (1995). Toward a new conception of the environment-competitiveness relationship. *Journal of economic perspectives*, 9(4), 97-118.
- Potts, S. G., Biesmeijer, J. C., Kremen, C., Neumann, P., Schweiger, O., & Kunin, W. E. (2010). Global pollinator declines: trends, impacts and drivers. *Trends in ecology & evolution*, 25(6), 345-353.
- Prajogo, D., & McDermott, C. M. (2014). Antecedents of service innovation in SMEs: Comparing the effects of external and internal factors. *Journal of Small Business Management*, 52(3), 521-540.
- Przychodzen, W., Gómez-Bezares, F., & Przychodzen, J. (2018). Green information technologies practices and financial performance—the empirical evidence from German publicly traded companies. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 201, 570-579.
- Pulse of the Fashion Industry (2017), "Global Fashion Agenda & Boston Consulting Group", available at: www.copenhagenfashionsummit.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/05/Pulse-of-the-FashionIndustry_2017.pdf
- Qi, J., Xin, X., John, R., Groisman, P., & Chen, J. (2017). Understanding livestock production and sustainability of grassland ecosystems in the Asian Dryland Belt. *Ecological Processes*, 6(1), 22.

- Qi, Y., Ma, L., Zhang, H., & Li, H. (2008). Translating a global issue into local priority: China's local government response to climate change. *The Journal of Environment & Development*, 17(4), 379-400.
- Quayle, M. (2003). A study of supply chain management practice in UK industrial SMEs. Supply Chain Management: An International Journal.
- Quintás, M. A., Martínez-Senra, A. I., & Sartal, A. (2018). The role of SMEs' green business models in the transition to a low-carbon economy: differences in their design and degree of adoption stemming from business size. *Sustainability*, 10(6), 2109.
- Quiroga-Calderón, L. M., Mejía-Salazar, I. S., Moreno-Mantilla, C. E., & Loaiza-Ramírez, J. P. (2018). Integration with Secondary Stakeholders and Its Relationship with Sustainable Supply Chain Practices in Colombian SMES. *European Journal of Sustainable Development*, 7(4), 131-131.
- Ramadhini, A., Adhariani, D., & Djakman, C. D. (2020). The effects of external stakeholder pressure on CSR disclosure: evidence from Indonesia. *DLSU Business & Economics Review*, 29(2), 29-39.
- Ramanathan, U., & Gunasekaran, A. (2014). Supply chain collaboration: Impact of success in long-term partnerships. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 147, 252-259.
- Ramasobana, A. M., & Fatoki, O. (2014). An investigation into the business social responsibility of micro enterprises in South Africa. *Mediterranean Journal of Social Sciences*, 5(3), 283.
- Ramus, C. A., & Steger, U. (2000). The roles of supervisory support behaviors and environmental policy in employee "Ecoinitiatives" at leading-edge European companies. *Academy of Management journal*, 43(4), 605-626.
- Rebs, T., Thiel, D., Brandenburg, M., & Seuring, S. (2019). Impacts of stakeholder influences and dynamic capabilities on the sustainability performance of supply chains: A system dynamics model. *Journal of Business Economics*, 89(7), 893-926.
- Reed, M. S., Fraser, E. D., & Dougill, A. J. (2006). An adaptive learning process for developing and applying sustainability indicators with local communities. *Ecological economics*, 59(4), 406-418.
- Reinartz, Haenlein, & Henseler. (2009). An empirical comparison of the efficacy of covariance-based and variance-based SEM. International Journal of Research in Marketing, 26(4), 332-344.
- Renwick, D. W., Jabbour, C. J., Muller-Camen, M., Redman, T., & Wilkinson, A. (2016). *Contemporary developments in Green (environmental) HRM scholarship*. https://doi.org/10.1080/09585192.2015.1105844

- Renwick, D., Redman, T., & Maguire, S. (2008). *Green HRM: A review, process model, and research agenda*. University of Sheffield Management School Discussion Paper, 1, 1-46.
- Resta, B., Gaiardelli, P., Pinto, R., & Dotti, S. (2016). Enhancing environmental management in the textile sector: an organisational-life cycle assessment approach. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, *135*, 620-632.
- Revell, A., Stokes, D., & Chen, H. (2010). Small businesses and the environment: turning over a new leaf?. *Business strategy and the environment*, 19(5), 273-288.
- Reza, A. K., Islam, M. S., & Shimu, A. A. (2017). Green industry in Bangladesh: An overview. *Environmental Management and Sustainable Development*, 6(2), 124.
- Rezaee, Z. (2016). Business sustainability research: A theoretical and integrated perspective. *Journal of Accounting literature*, 36, 48-64.
- Romero, S., Ruiz, S., & Fernandez-Feijoo, B. (2019). Sustainability reporting and stakeholder engagement in Spain: Different instruments, different quality. Business Strategy and the Environment, 28(1), 221-232.
- Roxas, B., & Chadee, D. (2012). Environmental sustainability orientation and financial resources of small manufacturing firms in the Philippines. *Social Responsibility Journal*.
- Roy, V., Silvestre, B. S., & Singh, S. (2020). Reactive and proactive pathways to sustainable apparel supply chains: Manufacturer's perspective on stakeholder salience and organizational learning toward responsible management. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 227, 107672.
- Rueda-Manzanares, A., Aragón-Correa, J. A., & Sharma, S. (2008). The influence of stakeholders on the environmental strategy of service firms: The moderating effects of complexity, uncertainty and munificence. *British Journal of management*, 19(2), 185-203.
- Rutherfoord, R., Blackburn, R. A., & Spence, L. J. (2000). Environmental management and the small firm. *International Journal of Entrepreneurial Behavior & Research*.
- Sa'adi, N., & Zainordin, N. (2019). Application of Green Technology Among the Contractors in Central Region of Sarawak. *e-Bangi*, 16(3).
- Saeed, B. B., Afsar, B., Hafeez, S., Khan, I., Tahir, M., & Afridi, M. A. (2019). Promoting Employee's Proenvironmental Behavior Through Green Human Resource Management Practices. *Corporate Social Responsibility And Environmental Management*, 26(2), 424-438. https://doi.org/10.1002/csr.1694
- Sáez-Martínez, F. J., Díaz-García, C., & González-Moreno, Á. (2016). Factors promoting environmental responsibility in European SMEs: The effect on performance. *Sustainability*, 8(9), 898.

- Sahoo, S., & Yadav, S. (2018). Total quality management in Indian manufacturing SMEs. *Procedia Manufacturing*, 21, 541-548.
- Said, R. M., Theng, L. T., Senik, R., Yusri, Y., & San, O. T. (2015). The state of sustainability disclosure and effects on companies' financial performance. *Pertanika Journal of Social Sciences and Humanities*, 23(S), 99.
- Sakamoto, M., Ahmed, T., Begum, S., & Huq, H. (2019). Water pollution and the textile industry in bangladesh: Flawed corporate practices or restrictive opportunities?. *Sustainability*, 11(7), 1951.
- Salem, M. A., Shawtari, F., Shamsudin, M. F., & Hussain, H. B. I. (2018). The consequences of integrating stakeholder engagement in sustainable development (environmental perspectives). *Sustainable Development*, 26(3), 255-268.
- Salimzadeh, P. (2016). Sustainable Practices in Small and Medium Sized Enterprises in Regional Australia (Doctoral dissertation, Federation University Australia).
- Salimzadeh, P., Courvisanos, J., & Nayak, R. R. (2013). Sustainability in small and medium sized enterprises in regional Australia: A framework of analysis. In Small Enterprise Association of Australia and New Zealand 26th Annual SEAANZ Conference Proceedings (pp. 11-12).
- Sallis, J. F., Cervero, R. B., Ascher, W., Henderson, K. A., Kraft, M. K., & Kerr, J. (2006). An ecological approach to creating active living communities. *Annual review of public health*, 27.
- Salloum, R. G., Shenkman, E. A., Louviere, J. J., & Chambers, D. A. (2017). Application of discrete choice experiments to enhance stakeholder engagement as a strategy for advancing implementation: a systematic review. *Implementation Science*, 12(1), 140.
- Sangwan, K. S., Bhakar, V., & Digalwar, A. K. (2018). Sustainability assessment in manufacturing organizations. *Benchmarking: An International Journal*.
- Sarango-Lalangui, P., Santos, J. L. S., & Hormiga, E. (2018). The development of sustainable entrepreneurship research field. *Sustainability*, *10*(6), 2005.
- Sarbutts, N. (2003). Can SMEs? do? CSR? A practitioner? s view of the ways small-and medium-sized enterprises are able to manage reputation through corporate social responsibility. *Journal of communication management*, 7(4), 340-347.
- Sarkar, A., Qian, L., & Peau, A. K. (2020). Structural equation modeling for three aspects of green business practices: a case study of Bangladeshi RMG's industry. Environmental Science and Pollution Research, 27(28), 35750-35768.
- Sarker, M. (2016). Green Manufacturing Practice of Rmg Sector In Pursuit For Green Industrialization In Bangladesh (Doctoral Dissertation).

- Sarstedt, M., Ringle, C. M., & Hair, J. F. (2017). Partial least squares structural equation modeling. Handbook of market research, 1-40.
- Saunders, M., Lewis, P., & Thornhill, A. (2016). Research methods for business students (Seventh). *Nueva York: Pearson Education*.
- Savitz, A., & Weber, W. (2006). The triple bottom line: How today's best-run companies are achieving economic. *Josseybass: Social and Environmental Success*.
- Saygili, E., Saygili, A. T., & Yargi, S. G. (2019). An Analysis of the Sustainability Disclosures of Textile and Apparel Companies in Turkey. *Journal of Textile & Apparel/Tekstil ve Konfeksiyon*, 29(3).
- Schaltegger, S., Hörisch, J., & Freeman, R. E. (2019). Business cases for sustainability:

 A stakeholder theory perspective. *Organization & Environment*, 32(3), 191-212.
- Schmidt, F. C., Zanini, R. R., Korzenowski, A. L., Schmidt Junior, R., & Xavier do Nascimento, K. B. (2018). Evaluation of sustainability practices in small and medium-sized manufacturing enterprises in Southern Brazil. *Sustainability*, 10(7), 2460.
- Schwalm, C. R., Williams, C. A., Schaefer, K., Baldocchi, D., Black, T. A., Goldstein, A. H., ... & Scott, R. L. (2012). Reduction in carbon uptake during turn of the century drought in western North America. *Nature Geoscience*, 5(8), 551-556.
 - Seidel, S., Recker, J., & Vom Brocke, J. (2013). Sensemaking and sustainable practicing: functional affordances of information systems in green transformations. *MIS quarterly*, 1275-1299.
- Sekaran, U., & Bougie, R. (2016). Research methods for business: A skill building approach. John Wiley & Sons.
- Sen, P., Roy, M., & Pal, P. (2015). Exploring role of environmental proactivity in financial performance of manufacturing enterprises: a structural modelling approach. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 108, 583-594.
- Severo, E. A., de Guimarães, J. C. F., & Dorion, E. C. H. (2017). Cleaner production and environmental management as sustainable product innovation antecedents: A survey in Brazilian industries. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 142, 87-97.
- Shakya, R. K. (Ed.). (2019). Green Public Procurement Strategies for Environmental Sustainability. IGI Global.
- Shankar, K. M., Kannan, D., & Kumar, P. U. (2017). Analyzing sustainable manufacturing practices—A case study in Indian context. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, *164*, 1332-1343.
- Sharma, A., & Foropon, C. (2019). Green product attributes and green purchase behavior. *Management Decision*.

- Sheldon, P., & Atherton, E. (2011). Greening Corrections Technology: Guidebook. *National Law Enforcement and Corrections Technology Center Corrections Technology Center of Excellence. Gaithersburg, Maryland, USA*.
- Shi, H., Liu, H. C., Li, P., & Xu, X. G. (2017). An integrated decision making approach for assessing healthcare waste treatment technologies from a multiple stakeholder. *Waste management*, 59, 508-517.
- Shields, J., & Shelleman, J. M. (2015). Integrating sustainability into SME strategy. *Journal of Small Business Strategy*, 25(2), 59-78.
- Shrivastava, M., & Tamvada, J. P. (2019). Which green matters for whom? Greening and firm performance across age and size distribution of firms. *Small Business Economics*, 52(4), 951-968.
- Sierra-Sánchez, J., & Mañas-Viniegra, L. (2020). Social Responsibility and Sustainability of Fast Fashion Retail Companies in the Textile Sector. In Management and Inter/Intra Organizational Relationships in the Textile and Apparel Industry (pp. 303-324). IGI Global.
- Silva, S., Nuzum, A. K., & Schaltegger, S. (2019). Stakeholder expectations on sustainability performance measurement and assessment. A systematic literature review. *Journal of Cleaner production*, 217, 204-215.
- Simpson, D. D., Joe, G. W., & Rowan-Szal, G. A. (2007). Linking the elements of change: Program and client responses to innovation. *Journal of substance abuse treatment*, 33(2), 201-209.
- Singgalen, Y. A., Sasongko, G., & Wiloso, P. G. (2019). Efforts to Achieve Environmental Sustainability through Ecotourism. *Journal of Indonesian Tourism and Development Studies*, 7(2).
- Singh, A., Kar, S., & Pamucar, D. (2019). Stakeholder role for developing a conceptual framework of sustainability in organization. *Sustainability*, 11(1), 208.
- SME Foundation (2018). http://www.smef.gov.bd/
- Smith, L., & Ball, P. (2012). Steps towards sustainable manufacturing through modelling material, energy and waste flows. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 140(1), 227-238.
- Smith, P. L., & Oakley III, E. F. (1994). A study of the ethical values of metropolitan and nonmetropolitan small business owners. *Journal of Small Business Management*, 32(4), 17.
- Soni, V., Singh, S. P., & Banwet, D. K. (2016). "Systematic inquiry for energy security and sustainability" (a case study approach for India using SAP-LAP framework). *Journal of Advances in Management Research*.
- Soriano, D. R., Mainardes, E. W., Alves, H., & Raposo, M. (2012). A model for stakeholder classification and stakeholder relationships. *Management decision*.

- Spence, L. J. (2007). CSR and small business in a European policy context: the five "C" s of CSR and small business research agenda 2007. *Business and society review*, 112(4), 533-552.
- Sriyakul, T., Umam, R., & Jermsittiparsert, K. (2019). Supplier Relationship Management, TQM Implementation, Leadership and Environmental Performance: Does Institutional Pressure Matter. *International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change*, 5(2), 211-227.
- Shrivastava, P., & Hart, S. (1995). Creating sustainable corporations. *Business strategy* and the environment, 4(3), 154-165.
- Stahl, G. K., Brewster, C. J., Collings, D. G., & Hajro, A. (2020). Enhancing the role of human resource management in corporate sustainability and social responsibility: A multi-stakeholder, multidimensional approach to HRM. *Human Resource Management Review*, 30(3), 100708.
- Stevens, G. C., & Johnson, M. (2016). Integrating the supply chain 25 years on. *International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics Management*.
- Stieb, J. A. (2009). Assessing Freeman's stakeholder theory. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 87(3), 401-414.
- Stone, M. (1974). Cross-validatory choice and assessment of statistical predictions. Journal of the Royal Statistical Society: Series B (Methodological), 36(2), 111-133.
 - Stucki, T. (2019). Which firms benefit from investments in green energy technologies?—The effect of energy costs. *Research Policy*, 48(3), 546-555.
- Subramanian, N., Gunasekaran, A., Abdulrahman, M., & Liu, C. (2014). Factors for implementing end-of-life product reverse logistics in the Chinese manufacturing sector. *International Journal of Sustainable Development & World Ecology*, 21(3), 235-245.
- Suh, C. J., & Lee, I. T. (2018). An empirical study on the manufacturing firm's strategic choice for sustainability in SMEs. *Sustainability*, *10*(2), 572.
- Tabachnick, B., & Fidell, L. (2006). Using multivariate statistics. Phildelphia.
- Tabachnick, B.G. & Fidell, L.S. (2007). Using Multivariate Statistics, 5th edn, Allyn and Bacon, Boston.
- Taghikhah, F., Voinov, A., & Shukla, N. (2019). Extending the supply chain to address sustainability. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 229, 652-666.
- Tamayo-Torres, I., Gutierrez-Gutierrez, L., & Ruiz-Moreno, A. (2019). Boosting sustainability and financial performance: the role of supply chain controversies. *International Journal of Production Research*, *57*(11), 3719-3734.

- Tang, G., Chen, Y., Jiang, Y., Paille, P., & Jia, J. (2018). Green Human Resource Management Practices: Scale Development And Validity. Asia Pacific Journal Of Human Resources, 56(1), 31-55. https://doi.org/10.1111/1744-7941.12147
- Tapaninaho, R., & Kujala, J. (2019). Reviewing the stakeholder value creation literature: Towards a sustainability approach. In *Social responsibility and sustainability* (pp. 3-36). Springer, Cham.
- Taxtile Learner (2014). https://textilelearner.blogspot.com/2014/10/list-of-garments-washing-mills-in-bangladesh.html
- The Daily Star (2019). https://www.thedailystar.net/business/news/smes-constrained-limited-access-credit-study-1740949
- Thoben, K. D., Wiesner, S., & Wuest, T. (2017). "Industrie 4.0" and smart manufacturing-a review of research issues and application examples. *International journal of automation technology*, 11(1), 4-16.
- Thomas, R. W., Fugate, B. S., Robinson, J. L., & Tasçioglu, M. (2016). The impact of environmental and social sustainability practices on sourcing behavior. *International Journal of Physical Distribution & Logistics Management*.
- Tilley, F. (1999). The gap between the environmental attitudes and the environmental behaviour of small firms. *Business strategy and the environment*, 8(4), 238-248.
- Torelli, R., Balluchi, F., & Furlotti, K. (2020). The materiality assessment and stakeholder engagement: A content analysis of sustainability reports. *Corporate Social Responsibility and Environmental Management*, 27(2), 470-484.
- Tornatzky, L. G., Fleischer, M., & Chakrabarti, A. K. (1990). *Processes of technological innovation*. Lexington books.
- Tröster, R., & Hiete, M. (2019). Do voluntary sustainability certification schemes in the sector of mineral resources meet stakeholder demands? A multi-criteria decision analysis. *Resources Policy*, 63, 101432.
- Tumpa, T. J., Ali, S. M., Rahman, M. H., Paul, S. K., Chowdhury, P., & Khan, S. A. R. (2019). Barriers to green supply chain management: An emerging economy context. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 236, 117617.
- Tung, A., Baird, K., & Schoch, H. P. (2011). Factors influencing the effectiveness of performance measurement systems. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 31(12): 1287e1310.
- Udayasankar, K. (2008). Corporate social responsibility and firm size. *Journal of business ethics*, 83(2), 167-175.

- Uddin, N., & Miah, M. (2020). Effects of Green Technology on Firms' Profitability and Solvency: A Study on Textiles Industry of Bangladesh. *Asian Business Review*, 10(2), 109-114.
- Umar, M. S., Danjuma, I., Hammawa, D. D., & Habibu, S. A. (2016). Effects of technological innovation in relationship between green supply chain management practices and green performance. *International Review of Management and Marketing*, 6(4).
- Vachon, S., & Klassen, R. D. (2006). Extending green practices across the supply chain: the impact of upstream and downstream integration. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 26(7), 795-821.
- Vernon, J., Essex, S., Pinder, D., & Curry, K. (2005). Collaborative policymaking: Local sustainable projects. *Annals of Tourism research*, 32(2), 325-345.
- Vierra, S. (2016). Green building standards and certification systems. Whole building design guide.
- Vinerean, S., Cetina, I., Dumitrescu, L., & Tichindelean, M. (2013). Modelling employee engagement in relation to CSR practices and employee satisfaction. *Revista Economica*, 65(1), 21-37.
- Wagner, T., Lutz, R. J., & Weitz, B. A. (2009). Corporate hypocrisy: Overcoming the threat of inconsistent corporate social responsibility perceptions. *Journal of marketing*, 73(6), 77-91.
- Waliman, W., Aliman, A., & Djuwita, P. (2017). Kepemimpinan Kepala Sekolah dalam Mengelola Tenaga Kependidikan. *Manajer Pendidikan*, 11(1).
- Wang, J. (2012). Research on the Economic Effects of Environmental Regulation-Mechanism and China's Evidence. Jinan: Shandong University
- Wang, J., Zhang, Y., & Goh, M. (2018). Moderating the role of firm size in sustainable performance improvement through sustainable supply chain management. *Sustainability*, 10(5), 1654.
- Wang, Y., Chen, Y., & Benitez-Amado, J. (2015). How information technology influences environmental performance: Empirical evidence from China. *International Journal of Information Management*, 35(2), 160-170.
- Watson, R. T., Boudreau, M. C., & Chen, A. J. (2010). Information systems and environmentally sustainable development: energy informatics and new directions for the IS community. *MIS quarterly*, 23-38.
- Wattanapinyo, A., & Mol, A. P. (2013). Ecological modernization and environmental policy reform in Thailand: the case of food processing SMEs. *Sustainable Development*, 21(5), 309-323.
- WCED, S. W. S. (1987). World commission on environment and development. *Our common future*, 17, 1-91.

- Weber, C. L., & Matthews, H. S. (2008). Quantifying the global and distributional aspects of American household carbon footprint. *Ecological economics*, 66(2-3), 379-391.
- Weerasiri, S., Dissanayake, R., & Zhengang, Z. (2012). Determinants of environmental management systems of manufacturing small and medium scale enterprises in Sri Lanka (No. 1231-2016-100823, pp. 51-58).
- Weng, M. H., & Lin, C. Y. (2011). Determinants of green innovation adoption for small and medium-size enterprises (SMES). *African journal of business management*, 5(22), 9154-9163.
- Werner, C. M., Rhodes, M. U., & Partain, K. K. (1998). Designing effective instructional signs with schema theory: Case studies of polystyrene recycling. *Environment and Behavior*, 30(5), 709-735.
- Wijethilake, C., & Lama, T. (2019). Sustainability core values and sustainability risk management: Moderating effects of top management commitment and stakeholder pressure. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 28(1), 143-154.
- Wilding, R., Wagner, B., Gimenez, C., & Tachizawa, E. M. (2012). Extending sustainability to suppliers: a systematic literature review. Supply Chain Management: an international journal.
- Williams, S., & Robinson, J. (2020). Measuring sustainability: An evaluation framework for sustainability transition experiments. *Environmental Science & Policy*, 103, 58-66.
- Williams, S., & Schaefer, A. (2013). Small and medium-sized enterprises and sustainability: Managers' values and engagement with environmental and climate change issues. *Business Strategy and the Environment*, 22(3), 173-186.
- Wilson, E. (2003). Adorned in dreams: Fashion and modernity. Rutgers University Press.
- Winter, S., & Lasch, R. (2016). Environmental and social criteria in supplier evaluation—Lessons from the fashion and apparel industry. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 139, 175-190.
- Woodard, R. (2021). Waste Management in Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs): compliance with duty of care and implications for the circular economy. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 278, 123770.
- World Bank (2018), "Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) finance improving SMEs' access to finance and finding innovative solutions to unlock sources of capital", available at: www. worldbank.org/en/topic/smefinance
- World Commission on Environment and Development, & Brundtland, G. H. (1987). Presentation of the Report of the World Commission on Environment and Development to the Commission of the European Communities, the EC

- and EFTA Countries... 5 May 1987, Brussels. World Commission on Environment and Development.
- Worthington, I., & Patton, D. (2005). Strategic intent in the management of the green environment within SMEs: An analysis of the UK screen-printing sector. *Long Range Planning*, 38(2), 197-212.
- Xie, C., Anumba, C. J., Lee, T. R., Tummala, R., & Schoenherr, T. (2011). Assessing and managing risks using the supply chain risk management process (SCRMP). *Supply Chain Management: An International Journal*.
- Xu, M., Cui, Y., Hu, M., Xu, X., Zhang, Z., Liang, S., & Qu, S. (2019). Supply chain sustainability risk and assessment. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 225, 857-867.
- Yacob, P., Fared, M., Maludin, N., Syaheeda, N., Wira, A., & Peter, D. (2020). Adaptability of SMEs Owners'/Managers' Environmental Attitude and Values. In *Charting a Sustainable Future of ASEAN in Business and Social Sciences* (pp. 307-319). Springer, Singapore.
- Yacob, P., Wong, L. S., & Khor, S. C. (2019). An empirical investigation of green initiatives and environmental sustainability for manufacturing SMEs. *Journal of Manufacturing Technology Management*.
- Yadav, V., Jain, R., Mittal, M. L., Panwar, A., & Lyons, A. (2019). The impact of lean practices on the operational performance of SMEs in India. *Industrial Management & Data Systems*.
- Yammarino, F. J., Skinner, S. J., & Childers, T. L. (1991). Understanding mail survey response behaviour: A meta analysis. *Public Opinion Quarterly*, 55(4), 613-639.
- Yang, C. S. (2018). An analysis of institutional pressures, green supply chain management, and green performance in the container shipping context. *Transportation Research Part D: Transport and Environment*, 61, 246-260.
- Yang, M. G. M., Hong, P., & Modi, S. B. (2011). Impact of lean manufacturing and environmental management on business performance: An empirical study of manufacturing firms. *International Journal of Production Economics*, 129(2), 251-261.
- Yin, Z., & Wang, H. (2017). Role of atmospheric circulations in haze pollution in December 2016. *Atmospheric Chemistry and Physics*, 17(18), 11673.
- Yong, J. Y., Yusliza, M. Y., Ramayah, T., & Fawehinmi, O. (2019). Nexus between green intellectual capital and green human resource management. *Journal of cleaner production*, 215, 364-374. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2018.12.306
- Younis, H., & Sundarakani, B. (2019). The impact of firm size, firm age and environmental management certification on the relationship between green

- supply chain practices and corporate performance. Benchmarking: An International Journal
- Yousuf, A., & Bhutta, S. (2012). Secondary school students' attitude towards environmental issues in Karachi Pakistan. *Journal of Educational and Social Research*, 2(10), 154-154.
- Yusof, Y., Awang, Z., Jusoff, K., & Ibrahim, Y. (2017). The influence of green practices by non-green hotels on customer satisfaction and loyalty in hotel and tourism industry. *International Journal of Green Economics*, 11(1), 1-14.
- Yusoff, T., Wahab, S. A., Latiff, A. S., Osman, S. I., Zawawi, N. F., & Fazal, S. A. (2018). Sustainable Growth in SMEs: A Review from the Malaysian Perspective. *J. Mgmt. & Sustainability*, 8, 43.
- Zafar, A., & Mustafa, S. (2017). SMEs and its role in economic and socio-economic development of Pakistan. *International Journal of Academic Research in Accounting, Finance and Management Sciences*, 6(4).
- Zhao, X., Huo, B., Flynn, B. B., & Yeung, J. H. Y. (2008). The impact of power and relationship commitment on the integration between manufacturers and customers in a supply chain. *Journal of operations management*, 26(3), 368-388.
- Zhao, Y., F. Zhu, and L. He. (2009). "Definition, Classification and Evolution of Environmental Regulations." In China Population, Resources and Environment, 85–90
- Zhu Q, Sarkis J, Geng Y (2005). Green supply chain management in China: pressures, practices and performance. *International Journal of Operation Production Management*. 25(5):449–468
- Zikmund, W. G., Babin, B. J., Carr, J. C., & Griffin, M. (2003). Business research methods (Ed.). Thomson/South-Western, Cincinnati, OH.
- Zsidisin, G. A., & Siferd, S. P. (2001). Environmental purchasing: a framework for theory development. *European Journal of Purchasing & Supply Management*, 7(1), 61-73.